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IN THE COURT OF CHIEF METROPOLITAN MAGISTRATE, 

PATIALA HOUSE COURTS, NEW DELHI 

Complaint No. _____ OF 2025 

 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

MS. PRATIMA MUDGAL                …COMPLAINANT 

VERSUS 

SHRI UMANG SINGHAR & ORS.               …RESPONDENTS 

MEMO OF PARTIES 

 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

Ms. Pratima Mudgal,  

Aged about 39 years 

W/o Shri Umang Singhar 

D/o Shri U.K. Mudgal 

R/o B-154/7, B Block, Vasant Kunj Enclave,  

New Delhi – 110070 

Occupation: Politician           …Complainant

 

 

VERSUS 

1. Sh. Umang Singhar 

 Aged about 50 years 

 S/o Lt. Sh. Dayaram Singhar 

 R/o Behind PWD Office,  

 Vidhayak Niwas, Dist. Dhar, M.P. 

 ALSO AT :- 

 C-90, Shivaji Nagar, Bhopal M.P. 

 Occupation: Member of Legislative Assembly at Gandhwani, M.P. 

and Leader of Opposition at M.P. Legislative Assembly 

…Respondent no.1 

2. Ms. Shakuntala Singhar 

 W/o Lt. Dayaram Singhar 

 Aged about 72 years 

 R/o Behind PWD Office,  

1



 Vidhayak Niwas, Dist. Dhar, M.P. 

                                                                                     …Respondent no.2 

3. Ms. Shivani Tina Singhar 

 Aged about 40 years 

 D/o Lt. Sh. Dayaram Singhar 

 R/o Behind PWD Office,  

 Vidhayak Niwas, Dist. Dhar, M.P. 

                                                                                    …Respondent no.3 

4. Ms. Priyanka Singhar Patel 

 Aged about 40 years 

 W/o Sh. Akhil Patel 

 R/o Police Commissioner Office,  

 Opposite Old Vidhan Sabha, Bhopal, M.P. 

 Also at Next to Chandra Mangal Bhawan,  

 Nehru Nagar, Rewa, M.P. 

                                                                                     …Respondent no.4 

 

 

COMPLAINANT 

THROUGH 

 

 

CHANDRIKA PRASAD MISHRA, PRASHASTI SINGH 

(Counsels for the Complainant) 

                                                    A-81, First Floor, South Extension-II,  

New Delhi – 110049, India 

Email: cp.mishra.clc@gmail.com 

Ph: +91-9899795324, 9407843268 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 17.02.2025 
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IN THE COURT OF CHIEF METROPOLITAN MAGISTRATE, 

PATIALA HOUSE COURTS, NEW DELHI 

Complaint No. _____ OF 2025 

 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

MS. PRATIMA MUDGAL           …COMPLAINANT 

VERSUS 

SHRI UMANG SINGHAR & ORS.          …RESPONDENTS 

 

AN APPLICATION/COMPLAINT U/S  12 OF THE PROTECTION 

OF WOMEN FROM DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ACT, 2005 ON 

BEHALF OF THE COMPLAINANT., MS. PRATIMA MUDGAL 

 

MOST RESPECTFULLY SHOWETH: 

1. That the present Application/Complaint u/s 18, 19, 20, 22 and 23 

of Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act, 2005 is 

being filed by the:- 

a. Aggrieved Person/Complainant   -    PRATIMA MUDGAL 

b. Protection Officer 

c. Any other person on behalf of the aggrieved person. 

2. It is prayed that this Hon’ble court may take cognizance of the 

complaint/domestic incident report and pass all/any such order, as 

deemed necessary in circumstances of the case: 

a) Pass protection order under section 18; and/or 

b) Pass residence orders under section 19; and/or 
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c) Direct the Respondent to pay monetary relief under Section 

20; and/or 

d) Direct the Respondent to pay compensation to the 

Complainant under Section 22; and/or 

e) Pass such interim orders as the court deems just and proper; 

and/or 

f) Pass order pertaining to maintenance of the 

Complainant/aggrieved person; and/or 

g) Pass any such orders as deems fit and proper in the 

circumstances of the case in favour of the Complainant. 

3. The present complaint is being filed before this Hon’ble Court by 

the Complainant against the Respondents no. 1 2, 3 and 4 by virtue 

of the Complainant being a legally wedded wife of the Respondent 

no.1 herein.  

4. That the Complainant submits that the Respondent no. 1, 2, 3 and 4 

have inflicted extreme form of mental and physical violence 

against the Complainant subsequently throwing her out of the 

matrimonial house which has constrained the Complainant to seek 

relief u/s 12, 18, 19, 20 and 22 of the Protection of Women from 

Domestic Violence Act, 2005. 

5. That the Complainant is an aggrieved person as per definition 

stated in Section 2 (a) of the Domestic Violence Act, 2005 as she 

had been in domestic relationship with the Respondent no.1 at her 

matrimonial home namely at CI Farm, Chandanpura, Kaliasot 
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Dam, Bhopal/ Vidhayak Niwas, Behind PWD Office, Dhar, 

Bhopal/ House No. 7517, Sector 43, Gurugram, Haryana wherein 

she was harassed and tortured by the illegal acts of violence of the 

Respondents no.1, 2, 3 and 4 and was eventually forced to leave 

and thrown out of the matrimonial house. 

6. That the Complainant has suffered domestic violence as per the 

Section 3 of the Act. The Respondents have harmed, injured & 

endangered health, safety, life, limb and well-being (mental and 

physical) of the Complainant by causing physical, sexual, 

emotional and financial abuse to the Complainant. 

7. That the Respondent no.1 immediately after the marriage started 

coercing and threatening the Complainant to engage in illicit sexual 

acts with him and his acquaintances resulting into severe form of 

sexual abuse and mental trauma on the Complainant. The 

Respondent no.2 and 3 despite being living in the same house 

refused to help the Complainant and instead provoked the 

Respondent no.1 even more to continue his conduct against the 

Complainant. Such acts and conduct of the Respondents amounts 

to physical abuse which is of such a nature as to cause bodily pain, 

harm, and danger to the life, limb, or health or impair the health or 
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development of Complainant including sexual and mental assault, 

criminal intimidation and criminal force.  

8. The Respondent no. 2 is the mother-in-law of the Complainant 

whereas Respondent no. 3 and 4 are sisters-in-law of the 

Complainant. Respondent no. 2 and Respondent no. 3, who is a 

divorcee used to permanently live with the Complainant at the 

matrimonial home whereas the Respondent no.4 is the married 

sister who frequently used to visit and stay at the matrimonial 

home of the Complainant for weeks. The Respondent no. 2, 3 

along with 4 after a month of the solemnization of the marriage of 

Complainant started verbally, physically and emotionally abusing 

the Complainant wherein she was subjected to insults, ridicule, 

humiliation, and repeated threats to cause physical pain to her. 

9. That the Respondent no.1 after one month of marriage started 

abusing the Complainant economically/ financially by depriving 

her of any kind of economic or financial support and resources to 

which the Complainant was entitled to by virtue of being a legally 

wedded wife of the Respondent. The Complainant being a social 

worker and a struggling person in the political realm was having 

limited financial support from her family which was eventually 

snatched away from her once she married the Respondent as her 
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father refused to accept her marriage with the Respondent. That the 

stridhan and other valuable belongings of the Complainant which 

she somehow managed to secure during marriage are also being 

held by the Respondent no.2 and 3. 

10. That the Respondent no.1, 2, 3 and 4 also prohibited/restricted the 

continued access to resources and facilities which the aggrieved 

person was entitled to use or enjoy by virtue of the domestic 

relationship including access to the shared household of which 

Complainant is entitled to. The Complainant is a victim of 

domestic violence committed by the Respondents and for the 

purpose of determining whether any act, omission, commission or 

conduct of Respondents constitutes domestic violence under this 

section, the overall facts and circumstances of the case may be 

taken into consideration. 

11. That the Complainant is now constrained to file the present petition 

as she is living under a constant threat that the Respondents will 

harm the Complainant, her daughter from her previous marriage & 

her parents. Further, the Respondents are also not willing to return 

the amount and her stridhan which the Respondent no.2 and 3 

grabbed from the Complainant throughout the time she resided in 

the matrimonial house. The Respondent no.1 has also failed to 
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perform his matrimonial obligation towards the Complainant by 

not providing her any form of monetary support which she entitled 

to by virtue of being his legally wedded wife.  That the 

Complainant u/s 17 of the Act notwithstanding anything contained 

in any other law for time being in force, being the legally wedded 

wife of the Respondent no.1 and being in a domestic relationship 

has right to reside in her matrimonial house and that the aggrieved 

person cannot be evicted or excluded from her matrimonial house 

or any part of it by him, save in accordance with procedure 

established by law.  

 

BRIEF FACTS OF THE CASE: 

12. The Complainant is a peace-loving citizen of the country having 

good reputation and cultural roots in the society.  

13. The Complainant in the present case is a social activist who has 

been consistently working in the field of welfare and community 

services and is also a member of a political party. The Complainant 

belongs to Brahmin community and her family. The Complainant 

is currently a resident of B-154/7, B Block, Vasant Kunj Enclave, 

New Delhi – 110070 where she is residing in a rented 

accommodation. True Copy of the rent agreement executed in 
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favour of the Complainant is annexed herewith and marked as 

ANNEXURE A-1. 

14. The Respondent no.1 herein belongs to Schedule Tribes 

community and is a resident of Dhar District of the State of 

Madhya Pradesh. The Respondent no.1 is in his third term of being 

an elected Member of the Legislative Assembly of Madhya 

Pradesh from Gandhwani constituency. He is also the Leader of 

Opposition in the M.P. Legislative Assembly and has been an 

erstwhile minister of Forest in the State of M.P. By virtue of such 

long held position in the political system, the Respondent no.1 

naturally holds a strong grip in the State machinery both politically 

and financially wherein he has been able to influence the material 

developments related to his relationship and the subsequent legal 

disputes with the Complainant throughout these past two years 

since their marriage. The Respondent no.1 also has several criminal 

antecedents in his name across the state of Madhya Pradesh for 

offences of abetment to suicide, kidnapping, cheating and attempt 

to murder.   

15. That the marriage of Complainant and Respondent no.1 was 

solemnized on 16.04.2022 at a farmhouse owned by the 

Respondent no.1 at Chandanpura, Bhopal according to Hindu rites 
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and rituals. The ceremony was held in a relatively private 

ceremony in the presence of Respondent no. 2, (mother of the 

Respondent no.1), 3 and 4 (sisters of the Respondent no.1) and 

close friends of both the parties. Since the marriage was an inter-

caste marriage which was done against the will of the family of the 

Complainant, nobody from her family came to her wedding. The 

Respondent no.1 from the day one of the marriage made the 

Complainant believe that she the only legally wedded wife of the 

Respondent no.1. True Copy of the photographs of the wedding of 

the Complainant and Respondent are annexed herewith and marked 

as ANNEXURE A-2.  

16. That after the marriage, both the Complainant and Respondent no.1 

started residing at CI Farm, Chandanpura, Kaliasot Dam, Bhopal, 

at Vidhayak Niwas, Behind PWD Office, Dhar, Bhopal and also at 

House No. 7517, Sector 43, Gurugram, Haryana wherein the 

Respondent no.2 and 3 already used to live with Respondent no.1. 

The Complainant was throughout under such bona-fide impression 

had married the Respondent that she was the only legally wedded 

wife of the Respondent. 

17. That the family members of the Complainant were completely 

against the marriage of the Complainant with the Respondent no.1 
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as the Respondent no.1 belonged to the Scheduled Tribe 

community and therefore none of the family members of the 

Complainant attended the wedding and instead the father of the 

Complainant cut off all the ties with the Complainant stating that 

the act of the Complainant brought immense disrepute and 

disappointment to the family in the society. The Complainant by 

now had become completely dependent on the Respondent no.1 as 

she had nobody else to go to or talk to. Further, the Complainant 

also had her daughter to take care of for which her husband from 

previous marriage was giving the funds. The Respondent no. 1 

sensing the helplessness of the Complainant and her absolute 

dependency on him gradually started exerting more and more 

mental and emotional control over her. 

18. That the Respondent no. 1 on the initial days of marriage often 

used to tell the Complainant that he would always support her 

financially and emotionally and therefore she need not be 

concerned about her family. Gradually the Complainant became 

totally disconnected with her family. 

19. The Respondent no. 2 and 3 however since the very first day after 

the marriage started showing their displeasure with the presence of 

Complainant in the house. The Respondent no. 2 in the very first 
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week after the marriage started humiliating the Complainant saying 

“pata nahi tujh jaisi begairat ladki mein kya dekh liya bhai ne 

varna teri haisiyat nahi hai iss ghar mein rehne ki jooti ki bhi”. 

Whenever the Complainant used to get dressed up to visit any 

place with the Respondent no.1, the Respondent no.2 immediately 

used to make excuses to stop her from going and instead used to 

pass comments saying “yahi sab chal chalan se tune fansaya hai 

mere bhai ko, lekin ab shadi kar ke aayi hai to ghar baith”.  

20. The acts and words of the Respondent no.3 were even worse as she 

lacked any form of civic sense of behavior wherein she used to find 

unnecessary reasons to pass remarks and hurl abuses on the 

Complainant. On one such incident when the Complainant was 

trying to cook something special for the family, the Respondent 

no.3 came to kitchen and said “agar itna hi kaam pehle kar leti to 

tere ghar wale tujhe nakaara samajh kar nhi chodhte”. To this the 

Complainant politely replied by saying that she should avoid 

commenting about her family as she will not compromise with 

their respect. After this the Respondent no.3 became angry and 

pushed the Complainant on the floor. Further, the Respondent no.2 

joined her and said, “saaf saaf samajh le ki ye sab karke tu mere 

bhai ko nahi fansa payegi, sirf hum behno ki hi chalegi iss ghar 
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mein islye zyada maalkin banne ki zaroorat nhi hai”. To this the 

Respondent no.3 laughed and said, “Maalkin banne ki to iski 

aukaat nahi hai, haan naukrani bana kar rakhte mein to koi kasar 

nhi chodhenge hum”. When the Complainant tried to get up then 

the Respondent no.2 grabbed her arms and wrist and the 

Respondent no.3 kicked the Complainant who again fell on the 

floor after which they left the kitchen.   

21. The Complainant when used to inform Respondent no.1 about such 

incidents of utter humiliation and abuse done by the Respondents 

no.2 and 3, he immediately got annoyed and instead took side of 

his sister and mother saying “meri behn aur maa meri jaan hain, 

unke khilaaf kuch nahi sunuga main, tune hi zaroor kuch kiya 

hoga”. The Complainant after hearing this felt really disappointed 

and but in order to keep her marriage smooth decided to avoid the 

acts of Respondents no. 2 and 3 and focus only on the well-being 

and happiness of her husband.  

22. That it is when the Respondent no.1 realized that the Complainant 

was completely under the mercy of the Respondent no.1 both 

emotionally and financially, the Respondent no.1 started showing 

his true colors. The true toxic and violent behavior of the 

Respondent no.1 came into the knowledge of the Complainant 

13



when he started establishing the conjugal relations with the 

Complainant wherein he often used to be forceful on the 

Complainant and if the Complainant attempted to stop him he often 

demeaned the Complainant that she was not meeting his level of 

liking.  

23. The Complainant started having self doubt about her personality 

and started making efforts to be a good wife by taking care of the 

day to day needs of the Petitioner. The Respondent no.1 however 

soon developed a pattern of picking up quarrels with the 

Complainant on the flimsiest of excuses and thereafter forcing 

himself physically while being verbally abusive on the 

Complainant citing that if she wishes him to forgive her for her 

mistakes then she must cooperate with his demands.  

24. The events preceding the marriage of the Complainant with the 

Respondent no.1 were as such that the Respondent no.1 previously 

had a subsisting marriage with one Ms. Vinita whom he married in 

the year 2013. However, Ms. Vinita and Respondent no.1 jointly 

filed a divorce petition i.e., SMA No. 338 of 2022 titled as Vinita 

vs. Umang before the Court of Principal Judge, Family Court, 

Saket, New Delhi seeking divorce under the Special Marriage Act, 

1954. The Respondent however while proposing the Complainant 
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for the marriage had assured her that his previous marriage with 

Vinita had already ended and he had secured a divorce decree from 

the court long back in the year 2020 itself. True Copy of the memo 

of the divorce petition and the subsequent order of conclusion of 

first motion dated 12.01.2023 in the SMA No. 338 of 2022 titled as 

Vinita vs. Umang filed before the Court of Principal Judge, Family 

Court, Saket, New Delhi is annexed herewith and marked as 

ANNEXURE A-3 (Colly). 

25. The Complainant was previously married to man and out of the 

said wedlock, she has a daughter. However, the same eventually 

started turning into an unhappy marriage. It is during this period 

that the Respondent no.1 met the Complainant in political 

gatherings and eventually won over the trust of the Complainant as 

a friendly person. The Respondent no.1 after becoming aware of 

the personal life of the Complainant started convincing and 

influencing the Complainant to divorce her husband by 

establishing that the relationship was not good for her and her 

daughter’s well-being as she was not happy in the marriage. The 

Complainant being a mother of a daughter was already undergoing 

extreme emotional turmoil sensing that her marriage was failing. 

Subsequently, on the continuous persuasion of the Respondent no.1 
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that she was capable enough to take care of her daughter and also 

on his promise that he will support her mentally and professionally, 

the Complainant got a divorce from her previous husband.   

26. Gradually, within one month of marriage the Respondent no.1 

started exercising more and more control on the mind of the 

Complainant who used to be completely shattered by her divorce as 

a consequence of which she was also under the pressure her family 

members. In the midst of all this, the Complainant developed 

emotional attachment with the Respondent no.1. The Respondent 

no.1 on finding the right opportunity proposed the Complainant for 

marriage wherein he promised to take care of her and her daughter. 

The Complainant however showed her unwillingness as the 

Respondent had an already subsisting marriage. The Respondent 

no.1 however informed the Complainant that he had already 

procured a divorce decree from his previous marriage. 

27. Meanwhile, the Respondent no. 2 and 3 while sensing the subtle 

marital discord between the Complainant and Respondent took 

immediate advantage of the situation and started harassing the 

Complainant in the absence of the Respondent no.1. In the month 

July 2022 while the Complainant was talking on phone with one of 

her friends, the Respondent no.2 reached there and snatched the 
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mobile phone from the Complainant. Thereafter she pulled the 

Complainant by the hair and started shouting “bata kahan chakkar 

chala rahi hai ye phone par baatein karke, ruk aaj bhai ko aane de 

batati hun teri kartootein”. The Respondent no.3 who was also 

present at the house came and held and tied both the hands of the 

Complainant saying “ise to aaj main sabak sikhaungi, maar maar 

ke jaan na le li kehna”. The Complainant immediately pushed the 

Respondent and ran towards the exit of the house wherein the 

home servants namely Ganesh and Gayatri forcefully stopped her 

from leaving the house saying “bhaiya ka gussa abhi nahi jaanti 

tum, chup chap andar jaao”. 

28. When the Complainant informed the Respondent no.1 about the 

above-said incident and act of violence of the Respondent no. 2 and 

3, the Respondent immediately grabbed her by neck and said, 

“meri maa aur behen ke khilaaf itna bolne par to main jaan le leta 

teri, par tu besharam hai tujhe sabak sikhata hun aaj”. The 

Complainant broke down and started crying and apologizing with 

the Respondent no.1 as she was aware of the anger of the 

Respondent no.1 and his violent behavior when alone in the room. 

Thereafter, the Respondent no.1 made the Complainant apologize 

to the Respondent no. 2 and 3 to which they cunningly smiled. The 
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Complainant felt extremely humiliated and disheartened by the 

incident where no one stood for her. 

29. The Respondent no.4 who frequently used to visit the matrimonial 

home of the Complainant and at times used to stay for several 

weeks used to join her mother and sister in the acts of humiliation 

and assaults on the Complainant. In one such gruesome incident in 

the month of August, the Complainant who was already under 

severe pain due to an injury was trying to climb down the stairs of 

the house, when she was pushed by the Respondent no.4 wherein 

she suffered severe injuries on her right part of her ear and face. 

The Respondent no.4 then came downstairs and said, “bohot shauq 

hai na bade ghar ke ladke ko fansane ka, aage aage dekhti ja hum 

kya karte hain tere saath”. To this the Respondent no.2 also came 

to the scene and said, “teri aisi haalat kar denge na kit u khud ghar 

chodh kar chali jayegi ya to apni jaan le legi”. The Complainant 

being severely hurt by such act of Respondent no.4 kept crying on 

the floor as she had no one to help her. 

30. The Complainant once heard the conversation of the Respondent 

no.3 and 4 and realized that both the sisters did not want the 

marriage of the Complainant and Respondent no.1 to work as they 

apprehended that the share in the properties of the Respondent no.1 

18



will also be legally inherited by the Complainant and her child, if 

born in future. The Respondent no.1 however himself being a 

mentally and politically corrupt person never paid any heed to such 

intentions of his sisters. It was Ms. Vineeta, the previous wife of 

the Respondent, who was the main culprit behind such behavior of 

Respondents as the Complainant later on came to know that she 

was constantly in touch with the Respondent no. 2, 3 and 4 and was 

instructing to create problems for the Complainant. 

31. The Complainant being a victim of gas lighting and self doubt 

created by the Respondents kept silent to the toxic and abusive 

behavior of the Respondents. However, the Complainant came 

across an eye opener situation when the Respondent no.1 soon after 

a few months of marriage asked the Complainant to establish illicit 

sexual relations with his friends in front of him in the name of 

entertainment saying “Mere aur mere doston ke liye tu itna to kar 

hi sakti hai, mera ehsaan hai tujh par”. The Complainant was 

utterly shocked and emotionally shattered by such obscene demand 

of the Respondent no.1 and abjectly refused to be a part of any 

such requests of the Respondent no.1.  

32. The Respondent no.1 on the above such refusal by the Complainant 

started inviting his friends and acquaintances at home wherein he 
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used to humiliate the Complainant by creating inexplicable 

situations in front of his friends by making indecent and vulgar 

comments and jokes on her. The Complainant however being 

completely aloof from her family and totally dependent on the 

Respondent no.1 kept silent to such acts of the Respondent no.1 in 

the hope that she would be able to change the behavior of the 

Respondent no.1.  

33. The Complainant despite being internally shattered by the 

disturbing acts of the Respondent no.1 and the continuous 

humiliation of the Respondent no. 2 and 3 stayed extremely 

courageous and patient throughout this time by continuously 

refusing to the inappropriate advances and demands of the 

Respondent no.1 wherein she used to pray and cry in front of the 

Respondents that she is not a kind of lady who could perform such 

illicit acts and being a wife of the Respondent she just wanted to 

lead a respectful life with the Respondent.  

34. However, the Respondent no.1 while not paying any heed to the 

requests of the Complainant instead started forcing the 

Complainant to record the Complainant while doing obscene acts 

with her saying “Agar mere doston ke saamne kuch nhi kar sakti to 

mere saamne to kam se kam tujhe sab kuch karna padega”. The 
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Respondent no.1 being a completely lewd person, in order to keep 

the Complainant in the state of actual subjection, forced himself on 

the Complainant while recording videos of the Complainant and 

taking her pictures in inappropriate and scantily clad conditions. 

The Complainant used to cry in pain and begged for the mercy of 

the Respondent no.1 but the Respondent no.1 throughout the period 

of her stay in the house abused and assaulted her sexually.  

35. That whenever the Complainant used to gather courage to oppose 

the  lewd acts of the Respondent no.1, the Respondent no.1 

threatened the Complainant in the name of her minor daughter of 

the Complainant stating that if she does not stay agreeable to his 

demands, he shall not spare a chance to harm her daughter as well.  

36. The Complainant who has had no history of illness of any kind 

before her marriage with the Respondent no.1, went into 

depression to an extent that she started having tendencies of self 

harm and thoughts of putting an end to her life being tormented by 

the atrocious acts of sexual assault and violence on the 

Complainant on multiple occasions. The Complainant was the 

target of unprovoked physical and mental abuse by the Respondent 

no.1 which amount to rape and sexual assault in the form of 

unnatural sex without the consent of the Complainant. 
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37. That once the Respondent no.1 realized that the Complainant was 

not agreeing to his illicit demands, the Respondent no.1 in 

connivance with the Respondent no.2, 3 and 4 gave strict 

instructions to the servants in the house especially Gayatri and 

Ganesh to not help the Complainant with the household chores and 

instead started ordering the Complainant to do the household work 

in place of the house helps. This tactic of the Respondents was not 

only to force the Complainant to succumb to the illicit demands of 

the Respondents but also to humiliate her in front of all the 

servants of the house. The servants of the house were also aware of 

the actions of the Respondents however nobody ever dared to help 

the Complainant or speak to her. It is noteworthy that all the 

servants in the matrimonial home were very close confidants of the 

Respondent no.1 who only used to obey the instructions of the 

Respondent no.1.  

38. That the Complainant was further restricted from going anywhere 

or do anything without the prior permission of the Respondent no. 

1, 2 and 3 as he was apprehending that the Complainant would 

straight away approach the police for help. As a consequence, all 

the individual rights of the Complainant were curtailed as she was 

confined to the house forcefully wherein she was continuously 
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being subjected to extreme form of mental and physical cruelty. 

The Complainant had been harassed and assaulted by the 

Respondents since the early stages of the marriage, but the 

Complainant did not lodge any formal complaint because of the 

immense pressure of the Respondents who is an extremely 

powerful person in the political realm of the state and also because 

she was under the impression that her marriage will not sustain by 

virtue of the previous marriage of the Respondent no.1 and 

therefore she would not be able to enforce any legal right against 

the Respondent no.1.  

39. That the inhumane behavior of the Respondent no.1 and 2 crossed 

its limit on 26.10.2022 when the Complainant after having an 

episode of complete mental breakdown decided to go out of the 

matrimonial home to seek some mental help but instead she was 

locked in a room by the Respondent no. 2 where after the 

Respondent no.1 while being in a drunken state came inside the 

room and started forcing himself on her. However when the 

Complainant protested, the Respondent no.1 pulled her hair and 

took the Complainant towards the balcony wherein he slapped and 

kicked the Complainant on her abdomen while the Complainant 

became completely numb and cried in pain and agony. The 
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Respondent no.1 took his utmost demonic character when he 

pushed the Complainant and hung her from the balcony shouting 

that he will kill her and stated “aaj to pehle wali ki tarah tera bhi 

khel khatam hi kar deta hun, jaan le lunga teri aaj”. The 

Complainant went into the state of severe pain and mental shock. 

The Complainant felt as if she was on the verge of dying and 

therefore she started shouting that she will agree to all his demands 

while begging for her life. The Respondent no.1 then pulled her 

back and threw her on the balcony floor wherein the Respondent 

no.1 brutally assault the Complainant sexually. He thereafter left 

her devastated and drifted off to sleep in the drunken state. That the 

whole incident on 26.10.2022 was pre planned by all the 

Respondents and throughout this time, the Respondent no. 2 and 3 

were supporting and instigating the Respondent no.1 in his above-

said acts of gruesome violence. 

40. The Complainant who experienced a close encounter with death in 

the above-said incident finally gathered the courage to seek legal 

help as by now she had become hopeless and realized that the 

Respondent had no affection or respect for the Complainant 

whatsoever. The Complainant was also aware of the already 

existing criminal antecedents of the Respondent and the continuous 
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conduct of violence and assault. Therefore, the Complainant 

immediately made a call to the PCR at Dial 100 at 3:15 pm on 27th 

October wherein a complaint bearing P22300006061 was 

registered with the Town Inspector, Dist. Dhar, M.P. and the 

Complainant received a confirmation text with regard to the same. 

However due to the political influence and pressure of the 

Respondent, no steps were taken by the police to rescue the 

Complainant from the matrimonial home. True Copy of the 

screenshot of the confirmation text message received by the 

Complainant from the Police Station in response to the at Dial 100 

at 3:15 pm on 27th October wherein a complaint call bearing 

P22300006061 was registered at Dist. Dhar, M.P. is annexed 

herewith and marked as ANNEXURE A-4. 

41. The Complainant meanwhile got to know that some woman was 

residing at their residence in Gurugram, Haryana. When the 

Complainant contacted her through video call, she had serious 

altercation with her after which the Respondent had heated 

exchange with the Complainant wherein he again slapped her. All 

the talks with the other woman were recorded on the video call 

which is very well preserved with the Complainant.  
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42. The Complainant on further enquiry with others found out that 

another girl namely Sonia had previously been found dead under 

mysterious circumstances at the farm house of the Respondent 

leaving a suicide note which contained her statements that “main 

ab umang ka gussa aur nahi seh paungi. Isliye main apni jaan le 

rahi hun” which translates as “she won’t be able to bear with the 

anger of the Respondent anymore and therefore she is taking her 

life”. The same was reported on multiple newspapers and an FIR 

was also registered against the Respondent in the same regard 

under Section 306 of IPC. However, soon the Respondent was able 

to influence and manage the material witnesses and evidences of 

the case which eventually led the quashing of the FIR. True Copy 

of the Order dated 17.05.2021 passed by the Hon’ble High Court of 

Madhya Pradesh quashing the FIR No. 375/2021 in the Sonia 

suicide case is annexed herewith and marked as ANNEXURE A-5. 

 True Copy of the newspaper clippings of the Respondent’s 

involvement in the suicide case of Ms. Sonia is annexed herewith 

and marked as ANNEXURE A-6 (Colly). 

43. That the Complainant in order to save her life and limb from the 

reach of Respondent had no other option but to flee away from the 

matrimonial house. However, the Complainant had realized that 
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even the police was not going to come to her rescue and 

apprehending an imminent danger to her life and also a risk to her 

daughter, the Complainant tried her last resort by calling her 

husband from her previous marriage who as she had no other 

person to approach at that moment. The Complainant’s previous 

husband thereafter came to the rescue of the Complainant along 

with the police whereafter the Complainant was taken to the police 

station.   

44. That the Complainant had made handwritten complaints on 

27.10.2022 and 02.11.2022 to the Town Inspector, Dist. Dhar 

wherein the Complainant informed about the offences committed 

by the Respondent no.1 against her in detail. True Copies of the 

Complaints given by the Complainant to the Town Inspector, Dist. 

Dhar, M.P. dated 27.10.2022 and 02.11.2022 is annexed herewith 

and marked as ANNEXURE A-7 (Colly). 

45. The Complainant also filed a complaint before the Director 

General of Police, M.P. on 15.11.2022 wherein she specifically 

detailed the offences committed against her namely sexual assault, 

rape, unnatural sex, brutal and abusive behavior coupled with the 

intention to kill the Complainant. True Copy of the Complaint 

given by the Complainant to the Director General of Police, M.P. 
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on 15.11.2022 is annexed herewith and marked as ANNEXURE 

A-8. 

46. Thereafter, a Case Crime No. 540 of 2022 was registered in the 

form of FIR on 20.11.2022 against the Respondent. The alleged 

FIR encapsulated the committal of serious offences of domestic 

violence, attempt to murder, rape, unnatural sexual offence, 

criminal intimidation, wrongful confinement, extortion and other 

criminal offences against the Respondent. True Copy of the FIR 

No. 540/2022 lodged in the P.S. Naogaon, Dist. Dhar for the 

offence punishable u/s 294, 323, 376(2)(n), 377, 498A and 506 of 

Indian Penal Code has been annexed herewith and marked as 

ANNEXURE A-9. 

47. The Respondent on sensing that he will not be able to stop the 

Complainant from taking legal recourse against him, to create a 

false narrative, gave a frivolous complaint to the station-in-charge, 

Naogaon, Dhar, M.P. on 02.11.2022 wherein he mentioned the 

Complainant as his wife and stated that he was being harassed by 

her. True Copy of the Complaint dated 02.11.2022 filed by the 

Respondent no.1 is annexed herewith and marked as ANNEXURE 

A-10.  
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48. The Respondent further made one of his servants Ms. Gayatri Devi 

who happens to be the wife of one of the closest confidants of 

Respondent no.1 namely Mr. Ganesh to file a false and frivolous 

FIR No. 514 of 2022 against the Complainant u/s 294, 323 and 506 

of IPC wherein she made false allegations against the Complainant 

for abusing and making caste-based remarks on her. The same was 

done to threaten and pressurize the Complainant. True Copy of the 

FIR No.514 of 2022 filed against the Complainant u/s 294, 323 and 

506 of IPC is annexed herewith and marked as ANNEXURE A-

11. 

49. Immediately after filing the above-said complaint, the Respondent 

also filed a Civil Suit No. 5590 of 2022 on 14.11.2022 before the 

Ld. Civil Judge (JD), Gurugram, Haryana seeking mandatory and 

permanent injunction with consequential relief of mandatory 

injunction against the Complainant. Pertinently, the Respondent in 

the above-said suit in contradictory statement falsely deposed on 

oath that the Complainant was merely in a live-in relationship with 

the Respondent and categorically denied that the Complainant was 

his wife. On the basis of the above-said suit, the Ld. Court vide its 

order 21.11.2022 restrained the Complainant from publishing any 

derogatory or defamatory remark/content pertaining to the personal 
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discord between the Complainant and the Respondent. True Copy 

of the petition i.e., Suit No. 5590 of 2022 filed by the Respondent 

no.1 before the Ld. Civil Judge (JD), Gurugram, Haryana has been 

annexed herewith and marked as ANNEXURE A-12. 

50. That only after the perusal of the above-said plaint/suit that the 

Complainant for the first time came to know that the divorce 

proceedings of the Respondent with Vinita (the so-called previous 

wife) were dismissed. The Complainant was utterly shocked by 

such revelation as throughout this time she was under the 

impression and assurance of the Respondent that he had got 

divorce from his previous marriage. The Complainant devastated 

by this revelation when confronted the Respondent on about the 

same, he flagrantly stated that he belonged to the tribal community 

and the customary laws of his community allow him to have 

multiple co-existing marriages. 

51. The above-said FIR No. 540/2022 filed by the Complainant 

contained detailed incidents of sexual assaults committed by the 

Respondent against the Complainant. The Respondent however 

approached the High Court seeking quashing of the above-said 

First Information Report filed by the Complainant on the ground 

that the allegations leveled by the Complainant does not establish 
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an offence as the Complainant was a legally wedded wife of the 

Respondent and on that ground alone, no ground of rape or sexual 

assault can be made out against the Respondent an allegation of 

marital rape is not an offence as per the law of the country. Further, 

the question is still pending under consideration before the Apex 

Court. The Hon’ble High Court of M.P. on the above-said ground 

quashed the FIR in question stating that the Complainant was 

legally wedded wife of the Respondent no.1 and therefore no 

offence is made out against the Respondent no.1. The Complainant 

approached the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India against the above-

said order by way of filing a Special Leave Petition against the 

order of the High Court but the same was dismissed. True Copy of 

the Petition filed by the Respondent no.1 before the Hon’ble High 

Court of Madhya Pradesh seeking quashing of FIR No. 540/2022 

has been annexed herewith and marked as ANNEXURE A-13. 

52. On a proper consideration of the facts and chain of events of the 

present case, it is evident that the Respondent no.1 has misled the 

courts of law multiple times by giving contradictory and false 

statements before the courts of law. On one hand the Respondent 

no.1 in his petition u/s 482 CrPC before the Hon’ble High Court 

stated the Complainant to be his legally wedded wife whereas on 
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the other hand he indiscriminately gave false statements and plea of 

him being only in a live-in relationship with the Complainant 

before the Ld. Civil Judge, Gurugram, Haryana. Such contrary 

stand of the Respondent no.1 before two different legal forums 

reflects his malicious attempt flavored with contempt of truth and 

laxity of morals against the due process of law with an intention to 

evade not just the criminal liability but also his matrimonial 

obligation towards the Complainant. 

53. The Complainant against such blatant web of lies told by the 

Respondent no.1 has filed a Complaint bearing CIS No. CRM-

8695 of 2023 before the Ld. Civil Judge, Gurugram, Haryana as 

wherein she has filed a complaint u/s 340 of CrPC for initiation of 

Criminal proceedings u/s 195 of CrPC against the Respondent no.1 

Mr. Umang Singhar for the act of falsely deposing before the court 

of law under oath by giving a false affidavit wherein he stated that 

the Complainant was not his wife and instead they were having a 

live-in relationship. The same is pending for consideration. True 

Copy of the latest order of the Court in the Complaint bearing CIS 

No. CRM-8695 of 2023 before the Ld. Civil Judge, Gurugram, 

Haryana is annexed herewith and marked as ANNEXURE A-14. 
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54. The Complainant is a victim of severe violence and harassment on 

the part of the Respondents and the Respondent no.1 shall not be 

able to evade his matrimonial obligations towards the Complainant 

who by virtue of being his legally wedded wife is entitled to 

maintenance at par with the living standard maintained by the 

Respondent no.1. The Respondent no.1 since the beginning of the 

marriage has shown multiple acts and incidents of violence and 

abuse on the Complainant wherein he attempted to kill her and 

further advanced death threats her family members. 

55. That considering the previous acts of domestic violence and assault 

against the Complainant at the hands of the Respondent no.1, it is a 

justified apprehension of the Complainant that if the Complainant 

attempts to go to her matrimonial home to claim her right in the 

shared household and her maintenance rights, the Complainant will 

be have an imminent threat to her life and personal safety. Since 

Respondent no.1 himself is staying in the same matrimonial home, 

it can very well be assumed that he will do all he can to threaten 

and harm the Complainant.  

56. That the Complainant is presently residing in Delhi at a rented 

accommodation with no job or source of earning wherein she has 

been at the mercy of her friends for taking loans as she is on the 
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verge of exhausting her savings. The family of the Complainant 

had already cut-off ties from her after her marriage with the 

Respondent. The Complainant is somehow trying to make the ends 

meet as professionally she is neither holding any political position 

nor she has been able to continue forward with her social welfare 

activities due to lack of any source of income and ongoing metal 

trauma from the persistent litigations. Further, she is also bearing 

complete responsibility of the upbringing of her daughter from her 

previous marriage where she is getting limited support from her 

previous husband.  

57. The father of the Complainant has repeatedly approached the 

Respondent no.1 through indirect means to support her financially 

however the Respondent’s audacity and shamelessness knows no 

bounds after the FIR filed against him stood quashed as now he is 

of the view that all his matrimonial obligations towards the 

Complainant stand no chance.  

58. Moreover, the Respondent no.1 maliciously sent a letter through 

his village panchayat to the Petitioner seeking dissolution of 

marriage. It is submitted that the same is strictly against the 

matrimonial laws of the country and the rights of the Complainant 

wherein a divorce can only be sought by following the due process 
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of law by way of a court decree after properly ascertaining the 

rights of the wife. True Copy of the letter received by the 

Complainant by the village panchayat of the Respondent is 

annexed herewith and marked as ANNEXURE A-15. 

59. That it is noteworthy that the Respondent by virtue of being a 

sitting Member of Legislative Assembly has a monthly salary of 

Rs. 4,00,000/-. The Respondent no.1 has also received a 

government accommodation to live and regularly draws multiple 

allowances from the government. The Respondent no.1 is an 

affluent man having disclosed assets worth Rupees 20 crores in the 

form of properties including farm houses, bunglows and plots 

across Bhopal, Dhar and Gurugram. He further holds undisclosed 

assets worth more than Rs. 40 crores which he has been able to 

accumulate by way of benami transactions wherein he has named 

these properties in the name of his close confidants, two of which 

are his servants namely Ganesh and Gayatri. One such substantial 

portion of the assets, which the Complainant is aware of, is held in 

the name of one of his close confidants namely Mr. Ganesh who 

along with his wife worked as servants in the house of Respondent 

no.1. Further, the Respondent no.1 had himself told the 

Complainant that the property of CI Farms, Bhopal was purchased 
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by him in the name of one of his friends. The Respondent no.1 has 

done the above-said act of benami transactions in order to evade all 

his legal liabilities and obligations towards the Complainant and 

other debtors. The details of the same may be perused from a 

document containing the details of the property owned by the 

Respondent no.1 which he has accumulated in the name of Mr. 

Ganesh, his servant. True Copy of the record of the property details 

of the Respondent in the name of his servant Mr. Ganesh and 

articles against him in the newspaper is annexed herewith and 

marked as ANNEXURE A-16.   

60. The Respondent no.1 as per the prescribed the Rules of Election 

Commission of India, filed an affidavit of disclosure of assets held 

by him on 29.10.2023 wherein he has not only partially disclosed 

his assets but has also stated that the Complainant is a legally 

wedded wife of the Respondent no.1. It is pertinent to note that the 

Respondent no.1 has been consistently paying maintenance to his 

first wife namely Ms. Vinita and his two sons out of the said 

marriage. Notably, Vinita is a non-working woman with no income 

source and holds a part of Respondent no.1’s property which he 

named on her. The same may also be perused from the affidavit 

filed by the Respondent no.1 before the Election Commission of 
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India. True Copy of the official Affidavit of disclosure of assets 

dated 29.10.2023 filed by the Respondent no.1 before the Election 

Commission of India is annexed herewith and marked as 

ANNEXURE A-17.  

61. The Complainant on 04.10.2023 also presented a formal complaint 

before the Joint Director, Bhopal Zonal Office against the 

Respondent no.1 seeking enquiry on Respondent no.1 with regard 

to acquiring unfettered money and property in various place of 

Madhya Pradesh and in the name of other persons namely Gayatri 

and Ganesh. True Copy of the Complaint dated 04.10.2023 filed by 

the Complainant before the Joint Director, Bhopal Zonal Office 

against the Respondent no.1 is annexed herewith and marked as 

ANNEXURE A-18. 

62. It is submitted that the Complainant in order to secure the future of 

her daughter took a home loan against which she is also paying a 

monthly EMI. It is submitted that in such a condition it is 

impossible for the Complainant to sustain all her expenditure single 

handedly.  

63. That it is pertinent to mention here that the Complainant has not 

fully recovered from the persistent illnesses and trauma which are a 

result of the continuous mental and physical violence inflicted by 
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the Respondents. It is prima facie clear from the facts of the present 

case that the Complainant was brutally harassed and exploited by 

the Respondents wherein the Complainant suffered violence of 

verbal, mental, sexual and financial forms and therefore she prays 

the indulgence of this Ld. court to give her relief under the Act 

which shall empower the Complainant to lead a life of dignity and 

maintain a healthy life at par with that of the Respondent no.1 who 

is living a luxurious life and also providing a luxurious life to his 

previous wife and sons out of the previous wedlock.  

64. That the present complaint is under the jurisdiction of this Ld. 

Court  as the Complainant is currently a resident of B-154/7, B 

Block, Vasant Kunj Enclave, New Delhi – 110070 where she is 

residing in a rented accommodation. 

65. That the present complaint is being filed on payment of the 

requisite court fees as per the Rules of this Ld. Court. 

66. That therefore in the present facts and circumstances, the 

Complainant is entitled to protection, compensation and relief 

against the Respondents in the interest of justice. 

PRAYER 
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It is therefore under given facts and circumstances of the case, the 

Complainant most respectfully prays that this Hon’ble court may be 

pleased to grant the following relief (s) in the interest of justice: 

 

i) Pass protection order under section 18 and/or  

ii) Pass residence order under section 19 and/or 

iii) Direct the respondent to pay monetary relief under section 20 

and/or 

iv) Pass order under section 21 of the act and/or 

v) Direct the Respondent to grant compensation or damages under 

section 22 and/or. 

vi) Pass such interim order as the court may deem fit and proper in this 

circumstance of the case. 

vii) Pass any order as deem fit in the circumstances of the case.  

 

Orders prayed for: 

i) Protection order u/s 18 

a. Prohibiting act of domestic violence by granting an 

injunction against the Respondents from repeating any of the 

acts mentioned in the above said Complaint. 

b. Prohibit the Respondent no.1 from entering in the dwelling 

house where the Complainant is residing and/or  
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c. Prohibiting any form of communication by the Respondents 

with Complainant. 

d. Prohibiting alienation of assets by the Respondent no.1. 

e. Prohibiting operation of joint bank lockers/accounts if any, 

by the Respondent and allowing the aggrieved person to 

operate the same. 

f. Directing the Respondents to stay away from the 

Complainant and any other person related to the aggrieved 

person to prohibit violence against them. 

g. Pass any other order pleases specific. 

 

ii) Residence Order u/s 19 

a. Restraining the Respondent no.1 from alienating or 

disposing of any inherited shares of the Complainant or 

encumbering of the share of property, including her stridhan, 

jewellery or any other article properties held either jointly or 

separately by the parties by virtue of domestic relationship; 

and 

b. Directing the Respondent no.1 to restore the possession of 

Complainant in the shared household and allow the 

Complainant to reside at the shared household namely CI 

Farm, Chandanpura, Kaliasot Dam, Bhopal, M.P./ Vidhayak 
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Niwas, Behind PWD Office, Dhar, Bhopal, M.P./ C-90, 

Shivaji Nagar, Bhopal, M.P. and; 

c. Restraining the Respondent no.1 from renouncing his rights 

in the shared household to the third party except with the 

leave of this Hon’ble court; and    

d. Directing the Respondent no.1 to secure same level of 

accommodation for the aggrieved person as enjoyed by her 

in the shared household; and 

e. Directing the Respondent no.1 to execute a bond with 

securities for preventing the commission of domestic 

violence by him; and 

f. Directing the Respondents to return to the possession of the 

aggrieved person her stridhan and jewellery and monetary 

reliefs u/s 20; and 

g. Directing the Respondent no.1 to pay the loss of earnings 

due to mental, emotional and physical harassment/injury as 

specified in above mentioned Para(s) amounting to Rs. 

20,00,000/-; and 

h. Directing the Respondent no.1 to pay the loss caused due to 

the destructions, damages or removal of the properties from 

the control of Complainant amount to Rs.10,00,000/-; and 
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i. Directing the Respondent no.1 to pay Medical expenses of 

the Complainant amounting to Rs.1,00,000/-; and 

j. Directing the Respondent no.1 to pay Litigation expenses for 

various legal proceedings amounting to Rs.5,00,000/-; and 

k. Directing the Respondent no.1 to pay the maintenance to the 

tune of Rs. 2,00,000/- per month (Rupees Two Lakh only) 

towards the day to day living expenses in the interest of 

justice which is in consistence and at par with the standard of 

living to which the Complainant is accustomed to as well the 

lifestyle which the Respondent are living. 

 

iii. Compensation order u/s 22  

a. Direct the Respondent no.1 to pay compensation and 

damages for the injuries including mental torture and 

emotional distress caused by the act of domestic violence 

committed by the Respondent amounting to Rs. 10,00,000/-; 

and 

b. Grant interim and ex-parte orders u/s 23 which this court 

deems just and proper under above mention facts and 

circumstances; And/or 
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(b) Pass any such other order or direction as it deems fit in the facts of 

the present case and in the interest of justice. 

fnellr;ne` 
IVICA

COMPLAINANT 

THROUGH 

CHANDRIKA PRASAD MISHRA, PRAT1ASTI SINGH 
(Counsels for the Complainant) 

A-81, First Floor, South Extension-II, 
New Delhi — 110049, India 

Email: cp.mishra.cic@gmail.com 
Ph: +91-9899795324, 9407843268 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: M.02.2025 

VERIFICATION 

Verified at New Delhi on this r31-14day of Feb, 2025 that the contents of Para 

  to of the accompanying Complaint are true and correct to my 

knowledge and belief. No part of it is false and nothing material has been 

concealed therefrom. 

DEPONENT 
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IN THE COURT OF CHIEF METROPOLITAN MAGISTRATE, 
PATIAL4. HOUSE COURTS, NEW DELHI 

rierr119W- NO. OF 2025 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

MS. PRATIMA MUDGAL ...COMPLAINANT 

VERSUS 

SHRI UMANG SINGHAR & ORS . . .RESPONDENTS 

AFFIDAVIT 

I, Pratima Mudgal, aged about 39 yrs W/o Sh. Umang Singhar, D/o Mr. 

U.K. Mudgal, Rio B-154/7, B Block, Vasant Kunj Enclave, New Delhi - 

110070 do hereby solemnly affirm and declare as under: 

1. That I am the Complainant in the present case. I say that I am well 

conversant with the facts of the case and thereby competent to swear this 

affidavit. 

2. That accompanying Complaint has been prepared and drafted under my 

instruction and I say that the contents and facts stated in Para to of 

he accompanying complaint are true and correct to my knowledge and 

belief. 

3. That Annexures A-1 to A- filed with the accompanying petition are 

true and correct copies of their respective originals. 
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7 FEB 2077 
VERIFICATION 

Verified at New Delhi on this day of Feb, 2025 that the contents of the 

above-said Affidavit are true and correct to my knowledge and belief. No 

part of it is false and nothing material has been concealed therefrom. 

DEPONENT 

CERTIFIED HE EPÔN 
Shri / Srnt. / 
S/o, Dio 

!dent' 

Delhi c,!   • No 
that the conic-4:-
have been .2- to 
true and conect to the kino\, 
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IN THE COURT OF CHIEF METROPOLITAN MAGISTRATE, 

PATIALA HOUSE COURTS, NEW DELHI 

Complaint No. _____ OF 2025 

 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

MS. PRATIMA MUDGAL           …COMPLAINANT 

VERSUS 

SHRI UMANG SINGHAR & ORS.          …RESPONDENTS 

 

APPLICATION U/S 19 AND 23 OF THE PROTECTION OF 

WOMEN FROM DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ACT, 2005 ON BEHALF 

OF THE COMPLAINANT I.E., PRATIMA MUDGAL 

 

MOST RESPECTFULLY SHOWETH: 

1. That the Complainant/Applicant is filing the present application u/s 

19 and 23 of the Protection Of Women From Domestic Violence 

Act, 2005 on behalf of the Complainant seeking ad-interim and ex-

parte relief of maintenance and other reliefs against the Respondent 

no.1. The Complainant has filed the accompanying 

Application/Complaint u/s 12 of the Protection of Women from 

Domestic Violence Act, 2005 and the contents of the same may 

kindly be read as part and parcel of this application, which are not 
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being repeated herein for the sake of brevity and to avoid 

repetition. 

 

2. The Complainant is having a no source of income and is unable to 

single-handedly maintain herself. It is submitted that no monetary 

help whatsoever has ever been provided to the Complainant by the 

Respondent no.1 as part of his matrimonial obligation by virtue of 

being the husband of the Complainant. The Complainant is living 

at the mercy of her friends from whom she has been taking 

personal loans. It is submitted that in such a condition it is 

impossible for the Complainant to sustain all her expenditure single 

handedly.  

 

3. That it is noteworthy that the Respondent no.1 by virtue of being a 

sitting Member of Legislative Assembly for the third consecutive 

time from the Gandhwani District of Madhya Pradesh has a 

monthly salary of Rs. 4,00,000/-. The Respondent no.1 has also 

received a government accommodation to live and regularly draws 

multiple allowances from the government. The Respondent no.1 is 

also the Leader of Opposition (LoP) in the State Legislative 

Assembly of M.P. The Respondent no.1 is an affluent man having 

disclosed assets worth Rupees 20 crores in the form of properties 

47



including farm houses, bunglows and plots across Bhopal, Dhar 

and Gurugram. He further holds undisclosed assets worth more 

than Rs. 100 crores which he has been able to accumulate by way 

of benami transactions wherein he has named these properties in 

the name of his close confidants, two of which are his servants 

namely Ganesh and Gayatri. 

 

4. That the Petitioner submits that the Respondent no.1 has already 

alienated major portions of his properties in the name of his close 

confidants and the Petitioner apprehends that if an immediate relief 

is not granted, the Respondent no.1 may alienate all his properties 

against which the relief is sought in the accompanying Petition.  

 

5. It is pertinent to note that the Respondent no.1 has been 

consistently paying maintenance to his first wife namely Ms. 

Vinita and his two sons out of the said marriage. Notably, Vinita is 

a non-working woman with no income source and holds a part of 

Respondent no.1’s property which he named on her. The same may 

be perused from the affidavit filed by the Respondent no.1 before 

the Election Commission of India. 

 

6. That the Respondent no.1 despite the above-said wealth and 

earnings has completely neglected the Complainant on account of 
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maintenance by not providing a single penny till date to the 

Complainant since past three years. The Complainant therefore 

prays for payment of a sum of Rs. 2,00,000/- per month (Rupees 

Two Lakh only) regularly from the Respondent no.1 for 

maintaining a healthy life of dignity at par with that of the 

Respondent no.1 who is living an ultra luxurious life. The 

Respondent no.1 is also providing continuous funds to his previous 

wife and sons who are also maintaining a luxurious living standard 

despite having no independent source of income of their own. 

 

7. That the Complainant/Aggrieved Person is having strong prima 

facie case in her favour and balance of convenience also lies in her 

favour and the Complainant is likely to succeed in her application. 

The Complainant shall be filing affidavit in the prescribed form 

herein. 

 

8. That the Complainant apprehends repetition of the acts of domestic 

violence by the Respondent no.1 against which the relief is sought 

in the accompanying complaint wherein the Respondent no.1 has 

threatened the Complainant and that he will not maintain the 

Complainant financially and even eliminate her existence if she 

raises voice against this state of affair. 
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9. That the reliefs claimed in the accompanying complaint are urgent 

in as much as the Complainant is facing grave financial hardship as 

she has no independent source of income wherein she has been 

able to make the ends meet by taking personal loans at the mercy 

of her friends. Her personal savings are also on the verge of being 

exhausted. The Complainant is in dire need of funds as she also has 

been maintaining her daughter from her previous marriage. The 

Complainant is also forced to live under constant threat of 

repetition/escalation of acts of domestic violence by the 

Respondent no.1. 

 

10. In the facts and circumstances of the case, it is necessary that an 

ad-interim ex-parte order of maintenance as prayed for be passed in 

favour of the Complainant & against the Respondent no.1. The 

Complainant shall have to suffer an irreparable loss and injury, in 

case an ex-parte order is not passed forthwith.  

 

P R A Y E R 

It is, therefore, most respectfully prayed that this Hon’ble Court may be 

pleased to: - 
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a. Pass an ex-parte order in terms of relief sought in the application 

under Section 12 of Protection of Women from Domestic Violence 

Act; and 

 

b. Direct the Respondent no.1 to restore the possession of 

Complainant in the shared household namely CI Farm, 

Chandanpura, Kaliasot Dam, Bhopal, M.P./ Vidhayak Niwas, 

Behind PWD Office, Dhar, Bhopal, M.P./ C-90, Shivaji Nagar, 

Bhopal, M.P. and allow the Complainant to reside at the shared 

household ; and 

 

c. Grant interim maintenance of Rs. 2,00,000/- per month (Rupees 

Two Lakh only) to the Complainant for day to day living expenses 

at par with the lifestyle of the Respondent no.1 till the disposal of 

the accompanying application under Section 12 of the Protection of 

Women from Domestic Violence Act, 2005; And/or 

 

d. Pass any other order/relief(s) which this Hon’ble Court may deem 

fit and proper under the facts and circumstances of the case, may 

also be passed in favour of the Complainant and against the 

Respondent no.1. 
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g)lestock' 
COMPLAINANT 

THROUGH 

CHANDRIKA PRASAD MISHRA, PRA11STI SINGH 
(Counsels for the Complainant) 

A-81, First Floor, South Extension-II, 
New Delhi — 110049, India 

Email: cp.mishra.cic@gmail.com 

Ph: +91-9899795324, 9407843268 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 02.2O25 
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IN THE COURT OF CHIEF METROPOLITAN MAGISTRATE, 

PATIALA HOUSE COURTS, NEW DELHI 

ComWa-A NO. OF 2025 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

MS. PRATIMA MUDGAL ...COMPLAINANT 

VERSUS 

SHRI UMANG SINGHAR c?/ OR5. . . .RESPONDENTS 

AFFIDAVIT 

I, Pratima Mudgal, aged about 39 yrs W/o Sh. Umang Singhar, D/o Mr. 

U.K. Mudgal Rio B-154/7, B Block, Vasant Kunj Enclave, New Delhi — 

110070 do hereby solemnly affirm and declare as under: 

1. That I am the Complainant/Applicant in the present case. I say that I am 

well conversant with the facts of the case and thereby competent to 

swear this affidavit. 

That accompanying application has been prepared and drafted under my 

Instruction and I say that the contents and facts stated in Para to of 

the accompanying application are true, and correct to my knowledge and 

belief. 

yiLsifivet1/4
DEPONENT 
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14 FEB 'Mt VERIFICATION 

Verified at New Delhi on this day of Feb, 2025 that the contents of the 

above-said Affidavit are true and correct to my knowledge and belief. No 

part of it is false and nothing material has been concealed therefrom. 

CERTIFIED 
Shri / Smt. / Km. .... 

D/o 

DEPONENT 

Rio 
Identifi 
Ha-s r. , r-rned BEFORC 
Delhi on  St 
that the contr -.
have been e--
true and correct to i.h-

it which 
him are 

owIedge 

ommissioner Cada..

1 7 FEB 2025 
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IN THE COURT OF CHIEF METROPOLITAN MAGISTRATE, 

PATIALA HOUSE COURTS, NEW DELHI 

Complaint No. _____ OF 2025 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

MS. PRATIMA MUDGAL                …COMPLAINANT 

VERSUS 

SHRI UMANG SINGHAR & ORS.       …RESPONDENTS 

LIST OF DOCUMENTS 

S.No. Documents PAGE NO. 

1.  ANNEXURE A-1 

True Copy of the rent agreement executed in 

favour of the Complainant. 

59-62 

2. ANNEXURE A-2 

True Copies of the photographs of the wedding of 

the Complainant and Respondent. 

63-64 

3. ANNEXURE A-3 (Colly) 

True Copy of the memo of the divorce petition 

and the subsequent order of conclusion of first 

motion dated 12.01.2023 in the SMA No. 338 of 

2022 titled as Vinita vs. Umang filed before the 

Court of Principal Judge, Family Court, Saket, 

New Delhi. 

65-66 

4. ANNEXURE A-4 

True Copy of the screenshot of the confirmation 

text message received by the Complainant from 

the Police Station in response to the at Dial 100 at 

3:15 pm on 27th October wherein a complaint call 
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bearing P22300006061 was registered at Dist. 

Dhar, M.P. 

5. ANNEXURE A-5 

1. True Copy of the Order dated 17.05.2021 passed 

by the Hon’ble High Court of Madhya Pradesh 

quashing the FIR No. 375/2021 in the Sonia 

suicide case. 

68-82 

6. ANNEXURE A-6 (Colly) 

True Copy of the newspaper clippings of the 

Respondent’s involvement in the suicide case of 

Ms. Sonia. 

83-85 

7. ANNEXURE A-7 (Colly) 

True Copies of the Complaints given by the 

Complainant to the Town Inspector, Dist. Dhar, 

M.P. dated 27.10.2022 and 02.11.2022.  

86-91 

8. ANNEXURE A-8 

True Copy of the Complaint given by the 

Complainant to the Director General of Police, 

M.P. on 15.11.2022. 

92-99 

9. ANNEXURE A-9 

True Copy of the FIR No. 540/2022 lodged in the 

P.S. Naogaon, Dist. Dhar for the offence 

punishable u/s 294, 323, 376(2)(n), 377, 498A and 

506 of Indian Penal Code.  

100-105 

10. ANNEXURE A-10 

True Copy of the Complaint dated 02.11.2022 

filed by the Respondent. 

106-108 

11. ANNEXURE A-11 109-114 
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True Copy of the FIR No.514 of 2022 filed against 

the Complainant u/s 294, 323 and 506 of IPC by 

Ms. Gayatri. 

12. ANNEXURE A-12 

True Copy of the petition i.e., Suit No. 5590 of 

2022 filed by the Respondent no.1 before the Ld. 

Civil Judge (JD), Gurugram, Haryana. 

115-123 

13. ANNEXURE A-13 

True Copy of the Petition filed by the Respondent 

before the Hon’ble High Court of Madhya Pradesh 

seeking quashing of FIR No. 540/2022. 

124-145 

14. ANNEXURE A-14 

True Copy of the latest order of the Court in the 

Complaint bearing CIS No. CRM-8695 of 2023 

before the Ld. Civil Judge, Gurugram, Haryana. 

146 

15. ANNEXURE A-15 

True Copy of the letter received by the Petitioner 

by the village panchayat of the Respondent. 

147 

16. ANNEXURE A-16 (Colly) 

True Copy of the record of the property details of 

the Respondent in the name of his servant Mr. 

Ganesh and articles against him in the newspaper. 

148-149 

17. ANNEXURE A-17 

True Copy of the official Affidavit of disclosure of 

assets dated 29.10.2023 filed by the Respondent 

before the Election Commission of India. 

150-174 

18. ANNEXURE A-18 

True Copy of the Complaint dated 04.10.2023 

filed by the Complainant before the Joint Director, 

Bhopal Zonal Office against the Respondent no.1. 

175-179 
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APPLICANT 

THROUGH 

CHANDRIKA PRASAD 1VHSHRA, PRA STI SINGH 
(Counsels for the Complainant) 

A-81, First Floor, South Extension-II, 
New Delhi — 110049, India 

Email: cp.mishra.cic@gmail.com 
Ph: +91-9899795324, 9407843268 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: tV,02.2025 

Arif
Typewriter
58



Certificate No 
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This Rent Agreement is being executed at New Delhi on 298T October 2024 between MR. DEVENDRA S/o SH. RAMVEER SINGH R/O D41, EKTA VIHAR, SECTOR-6, R. K. PURAM, NEW DELHI-110022 (AADHAR NO: 8990 6350 9139) do hereinafter call the first party/Owner. 

MS. PRATIMA MUDGAL SHARMA D/O SH. �URGESEASHARMA R/O SHOP NO. 1, BANDRIYA TIRAHA, NARMADA ROAD, RAMPUR, GAURIGHAT, JABALPUR, MADHYA PRADESH-482008, (UID NO: 8805-7941-1994), do 

The expression of the LANDLORD and the TENANT shall mean and include their 
legal heirs, successors, executors, administrator, representatives, assigns and 
nominee etc. Whereas the LANDLORD is the absolute owner and sole owner of 
the said property. 

1 

Whereas on the request of the Tenant the Landlord has agreed to let out 2BHK 
FLAT ON UPPER GROUND FLOOR, PROPERTY BEARING NO.B-154/7, B 
BLOCK, VASANT KUN ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI-110070. 

2 

RENT AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS on the request of the tenant the landlord has agreed to let out the 
said property and the tenant has also agreed to take the same on monthly rent 
of Rs 28,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Eight Thousand Only) extra maintenance 
charges, extra water charges, extra Electricity charges Rs. lO/- per unit, 
following terms and conditions of the agreement as under; -

3 

4 

AND 

5 

U-k.Mudaal 

6 

That the Tenant has taken the said premises only for lawful RESIDENTIAL 
PURPOSE, and not for any other purpose. 

That the tenancy shall commence from 05.11.2024 for a period of 11 

months only. However, the said tenancy period can be extended further 

with the mutual consent of both the parties by 10% increase in the said 

rent with a Fresh/New Rent Agreement. 

That the Landlord can inspect the said prernises at any responsible time 

in the presence of the tenant and the tenant shall have no objection for 

the same in future. 

That the tenant shall pay the said monthly rent in advance cash or through 

demand draft/RTGS/NEFT (PDC) payable at Delhi to the Landlord up to 

5h day of each of English Calendar Month. 

Devende 

That the tenant shall not store or stock any objectionable items, 

hazardous, inflammable and offensive articles etc. in the said tenanted 

presumes. 

That the tenant shall not sub-let-th¹ said premises or any portion thereof 

to anybody else. 

iOMBIR SANGWAN' 
AREA-NCT DELHI 

REGD. NO. 10665 
EXP. DT-2606209 

OFIND 

hereinafter Called the Tenant/ Second Party. 
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7. 

9 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

|7 

18 

19. 

That the tenant shall be responsible for minor repairs/maintenance work 
done by his own cost in the tenancy premises time to time. 

That the tenant shall not damnage the said prenises or any portion thereof 

and he/she shall keep the said premises quite neat and clean in all 
respect. 

That the tenant shall not make any additions in the said premises without 
written consent of the landlord. 

That if the tenant wants to vacate the said premises before the expiry of 
tenancy period, then he/she shall have to intimate the first party/Owner 
before one month of vacating the premises. 

That the minor repairs such as leakages to water taps, electricity fuses etc. 
shall be done by the tenant/ second party. 
That the tenant/ second party has paid an interest free security amount of 

Rs. 28,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Eight Thousand Only), to the owner/ first 

party in respect of the said premises, that the above said security amount 
will be refunded at the time, when the tenant/second party shall vacate 

the possession of the said premises, to owner/ first party after clearing all 

dues of rent amnount electricity and water charges etc., 

If the second party will vacate the tenancy premises before completion of 

six mornth, then the security amount shall be forfeited by the first party. 

That in case, the first party sales the above said property, then the second 

party shall vacate and release the above said premises within the prior 

notice period as this agreement. 

All movables are given in working condition and shall be taken back in 

working condition else the repair cost to be borne by tenant. 

Any repair of house electrical, electronic, furniture, to be borne by tenant. 

That in case of the defaults for non-paynent of the Rent, The Owner will 

be fully entitled to realize the rent through court of law under specific 

performances of contract at the cost, risk, and responsibility of the tenant. 

That the First party will not responsible for any pending loan for the above 

time. 
mentioned tenancy period in 

That both the parties shall abide by all the rules and regulations of the 

Rent Control Act and terms and conditions of this agreement. That the 

both parties have signed on this agreement with their sound mind and 

good health. 

Dev ehdley 
OMBIR SANGWAN' t AREA-NCT DELHI 
REGD. NO. 1065 EXP. DI-Z6 06 2029, 
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20. That the second arty shall handover the peaceful vacant physical possession of the said premises with all items on the same conditions ater expiry of agreement period. 
IN WITNESSES WHEREOF, the landlord and the tenant executed this 
agreement, in the presence of the following witnesses: -

WITNESSES: -

1. 

487158syo 

OMBIR SANGHAN 
AREA-NCT D 

MO666 
EX?, DT-26062029 

OF 

ATTASTED 

FIRST PARTY/OWNER 

30 0CT 2024 

Devendy 

OMBIR SANGVoTARY PUBLIC DELHW 
Regd. Nd1g665, Govt. of india 

Ch, No. 5. Patinla House Court, N. Delhi-110001 

SECOND PARTY/TENANT 
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Madhya Pradesh High Court
Umang Singhar vs The State Of Madhya Pradesh on 5 January, 2022
Author: Sanjay Dwivedi

                                      1
                                                       M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021

THE HIGH COURT OF MADHYA PRADESH, JABALPUR
                       M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021
                            Umang Singhar
                                   Versus
                State of Madhya Pradesh & another
 Date of Order             05.01.2022
 Bench Constituted         Single Bench
 Order delivered by        Hon'ble Mr. Justice Sanjay Dwivedi
 Whether approved          ---
 for reporting
 Name of counsel for For petitioner: Mr. Sankalp Kochar
 parties             Advocate and Mr. Sami Ali, Advocate.
                     For respondent No.1/State: Mr. Vivek

Sharma, Deputy Advocate General.

For respondent No.2: Mr. Rohit Sharma, Advocate.

Law laid down ---

Significant Para Nos. ---

Reserved on: 24.11.2021 Delivered on: 05.01.2022 (O R D E R) (05.01.2022) With the consent of
learned counsel for the parties, this petition is heard finally.

2. By this petition filed under Section 482 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, the petitioner is
seeking following relief (s):-

(i) Call for the case diary and record of FIR bearing Crime No.375/2021 dt.17.05.2021
registered at P.S. Shahpura, District-Bhopal (M.P.), in the interest of justice.

(ii) To quash and set aside FIR bearing Crime No.375/2021 dt.17.05.2021 as well as
other consequential proceedings arising out of Crime No.375/2021 registered at P.S.
M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 Shahpura, District-Bhopal (M.P.), in the interest of justice.

(iii) To grant any other relief as the Hon'ble Court deems fit, in the interest of justice.

3. Since, the basic relief as claimed by the petitioner in this petition is for quashing the FIR dated
17.05.2021 registered against him vide Crime No.375/2021 for the offence punishable under Section

Umang Singhar vs The State Of Madhya Pradesh on 5 January, 2022
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306 of the Indian Penal Code at Police Station Shahpura, District Bhopal, therefore, to resolve the
controversy involved in the case so also to answer the question as to whether the offence registered
against the petitioner on the basis of material collected by the prosecution is proper or the material
so collected is not sufficient to constitute an offence and on that basis the FIR can be quashed, the
facts of the case in nutshell are that:-

(3.1)        The petitioner who belongs to Indian National
             Congress party, is an elected Member of
             Legislative     Assembly          (MLA)     from         the

constituency of Gandwani, District Dhar. (3.2) The genesis of this case arises from an incident when
one Ms. Sonia Bharadwaj committed suicide in the petitioner's house on 16.05.2021 leaving behind
a suicide note mentioning therein that she is committing suicide at her own will for which nobody is
to be blamed.

(3.3) As per the material collected by the prosecution, also the statements of mother and son of the
deceased recorded by the police, this fact has come out that the deceased was a patient of Bipolar
Affective Disorder (BPAD), which is a serious mental disorder and is a form of acute depression and
hypo-mania. The deceased was undergoing treatment of BPAD at Bansal Hospital, Bhopal as
M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 also Shri Krishna Hospital, Ambala, Haryana. (3.4) After the death of Ms.
Sonia Bharadwaj, her son Aaryan Bharadwaj and her mother Mrs. Kunti Devi reached Bhopal and
performed cremation. However, the petitioner had also attended the cremation ceremony of
deceased at Bhopal. (3.5) The prosecution projected the story like that the deceased was in relation
with the petitioner and used to reside with him in his house, but as the petitioner was harassing her
mentally and physically, therefore, left with no option, Ms. Sonia Bharadwaj committed suicide.
Accordingly, by registering the FIR against the petitioner, he has been made accused under Section
306 of the IPC. (3.6) However, the statements of mother and son of the deceased got recorded on
17.05.2021 wherein they did not blame the petitioner for abetting the deceased to commit suicide.
Although, within a time gap of 30 minutes, another statement of son of deceased got recorded by the
police and in the second round also, he has not alleged anything against the petitioner. As per the
petitioner, even in absence of any material ingredient, the police registered the FIR against him.

(3.7) Thereafter, the petitioner against registration of FIR, has approached the Inspector General of
Police by making a representation, but nothing has been done.

(3.8) Moreover, the son of the deceased Aaryan Bharadwaj came out in media and also in public to
inform that the police is abusing its power by pressurizing him to give statement against the
petitioner so as to implicate him in his mother's M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 suicide case. Thereafter,
the son of the deceased has approached the Director General of Police and also to Hon'ble the Chief
Minister of Madhya Pradesh saying that the petitioner had no role in the matter nor is he
responsible for his mother's death. The son and mother of the deceased have filed their affidavits
stating therein that the petitioner and deceased had cordial relations and whenever deceased went
to Bhopal, she used to stay in the petitioner's house. It has also been mentioned that the deceased
had never complained regarding any type misbehaviour or harassment done by the petitioner. They
have also admitted that the deceased was suffering from BPAD and because of that she often faced
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depression. Without there being any allegation levelled by the mother and son of the deceased
against the petitioner, the police registered the FIR against him at Police Station Shahpura, District
Bhopal, therefore, left with no option, this petition has been filed.

4. Mr. Kochar, learned counsel for the petitioner submits that the petitioner is innocent and has
falsely been implicated in the matter. He submits that the petitioner has neither instigated nor
abeted the deceased to commit suicide. He further submits that when the deceased in her suicide
note had mentioned that nobody is to be blamed for her suicide then implicating the petitioner in
the matter, is nothing but an abuse of power. He also submits that the mother and son of the
deceased in their statements have very clearly stated that the deceased in her lifetime had never
complained regarding any harassment or ill-treatment done by the petitioner. He submits that they
have also admitted that the deceased was suffering M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 from BPAD and
undergoing treatment in various hospitals. He also submits that before registering the FIR, no
preliminary enquiry was conducted by the police. He submits that even if the allegations levelled in
the FIR are considered to be true then also the ingredients of the offence of 'abetment to commit
suicide' punishable under Section 306 of the IPC are not attracted. In support of his contention,
learned counsel for the petitioner has placed reliance upon various judgments of the Supreme Court
viz. (2001) 9 SCC 618 [Ramesh Kumar Vs. State of Chhattisgarh]; (2004) 13 SCC 129 [Randhir
Singh and another Vs. State of Punjab]; (2010) 8 SCC 628 [Madan Mohan Singh Vs. State of Gujarat
and another]; (2010) 12 SCC 190 [S.S. Chheena Vs. Vijay Kumar Mahajan and another]; (2011) 3
SCC 626 [M. Mohan Vs. State] and (2017) 1 SCC 433 [Gurcharan Singh Vs. State of Punjab].

5. Mr. Sharma, learned Deputy Advocate General appearing for respondent No.1/State opposes the
submissions made by learned counsel for the petitioner and submits that exercising the power
provided under Section 482 of the CrPC for quashing the FIR that too in the mid of investigation, is
not proper. He submits that even otherwise from the recital of the suicide note, it is clear that the
petitioner used to harass the deceased mentally and emotionally, therefore, left with no option, she
committed suicide and as such, the police did nothing wrong in implicating the petitioner under
Section 306 of the IPC. He submits that in the case-diary a CD is also available which reveals that
this is not a fit case wherein the power provided under Section 482 of the CrPC can be exercised for
quashing the FIR. To bolster his submission, learned Deputy Advocate General has placed reliance
upon a case of Supreme Court reported in 2021 SCC Online SC 315 [Neeharika Infrastructure Pvt.
Ltd. Vs. State of M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 Maharashtra and Others] wherein the Supreme Court
relying upon various decisions of the Supreme Court has reached at the conclusion that as to when
the power provided under Section 482 can be exercised by the Court for quashing the FIR. He
submits that in the aforesaid case, the Supreme Court has observed that during investigation or till
the period of filing the charge-sheet under Section 173 of the CrPC, power provided Section 482
should not be exercised. He has also placed reliance upon a decision of Supreme Court reported in
1992 Supp (1) SCC 335 [State of Haryana Vs. Bhajan Lal] wherein it has been held that the power
provided under Section 482 cannot be exercised by the Court at the stage when investigation is yet
to be completed. He has further relied upon an order dated 07.08.2018 passed by this Court in
M.Cr.C. No.6230/2018 [Ashish Raj Vs. State of M.P.] wherein the High Court in a petition filed
under Section under Section 482 of the CrPC has refused to quash the FIR registered under Section
306 of the IPC saying that when the ingredients of offence are disclosed, the power provided under
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Section 482 of the CrPC cannot be exercised.

6. Mr. Rohit Sharma, learned counsel for respondent No.2 relying upon the reply filed has
supported the stand taken by learned counsel for the petitioner. He submits that there were familiar
relations between the petitioner and deceased. He also submits that the conduct of the petitioner
towards the deceased was very good. He also submits that the petitioner had never misbehaved with
the deceased.

7. I have heard the arguments advanced by learned counsel for the parties and perused the case
diary.

8. To reach the conclusion as to whether the prosecution has rightly implicated the petitioner in the
offence registered under Section 306 of the IPC, first of all, I have to see the foundation of
registration of offence. During the course M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 of investigation, the
prosecution has collected a suicide note which has following contents:-

"vc eS vkSj lgu ugha dj ldrhA eSus viuh rjQ ls lc dqN fd;kA ij meax dk xqLlk cgksr
T;knk gS eq>s Mj yxrk gSA oks eq>s viuh Life esa txg ugh nsuk pkgrkA mldh fdlh
Hkh pht dks Touch djks rks mldks cqjk yxrk gSA bl ckj Hkh eSa tcjnLrh Hkksiky
vkbZ oks rks pkgrk gh ugha Fkk fd eSa Hkksiky vkÅA vk;Zu Sorry eSa rsjh life ds fy,
dqN ugha dj ikbZA iwjh Life Try fd;kA Aaryan dh Life set d: ij ugha dj ikbZA eSa tks
dqN Hkh dj jgh gwWa viuh ethZ ls dj jgh gWwA fdlh dh dksbZ xyrh ugha gSA Umang
vkids lkFk eSus lkspk Fkk Life set gks tk,xh I Love You dksf'k'k dh Adjust djus dh ij
vkius txg uh nh eq>s viuh Life esaA Aaryan Sorry-I Love You"

The aforesaid recital of the suicide note does not indicate that the deceased has made any allegation
indicating that the petitioner at any point of time had instigated or done anything which abetted her
for committing suicide. Moreover, the suicide note indicates that it is the deceased who was upset
with the petitioner because he was not giving her much attention. The suicide note also reveals that
the deceased was expecting something more from the petitioner, but as she was not getting the same
and her expectations were not fulfilled, therefore, she committed suicide. The case-diary also
contains the documents showing that the deceased was undergoing treatment of BPAD from Bansal
and Shri Krishna Hospitals. In the statements of the mother and son of the deceased recorded on
the date of incident i.e. on 17.05.2021, they have not made any allegation against the petitioner.
Thereafter, in the statement of son of the deceased recorded by the police on the next day of the
incident i.e. on 18.05.2021, he has nowhere mentioned that the deceased has committed suicide on
account of cruelty and harassment done by the petitioner and on the contrary, he has very
categorically stated that the relations between the petitioner's family and his family were cordial.
Moreso, in the statement of the mother of the deceased M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 recorded on
18.05.2021, she has stated that a talk with regard to marriage of the petitioner and deceased was
going on between them as the petitioner had shown interest to get married with the deceased, but
she has also not stated that her daughter has committed suicide because of ill-treatment of the
petitioner. Although, she has stated that the deceased was unhappy as her marriage could not be
solemnized with the petitioner and that might be a reason for committing suicide.
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9. However, in the FIR lodged by the police officer it is mentioned that on the basis of suicide note,
the police arrived at the conclusion that the deceased committed suicide for the reason that despite
living with the petitioner in live-in relation for last two months, her marriage could not be
solemnized with him. On the basis of suicide note, it is also mentioned in the FIR that the petitioner
was a very short tempered person. The FIR clearly indicates that the foundation of registration of
offence was nothing but the suicide note which reads as under:-

"cts lwpuk eq>s fujh{kd Fkkuk izHkkjh egsUnz dqekj feJk ls gS fd eSa Fkkuk 'kkgiqjk
Hkksiky esa Fkkuk izHkkjh ds in ij inLFk gwWaA Fkkuk 'kkgiqjk ds exZ Ø-18@21
/kkjk 174 tkQkS dh e`frdk lksfu;k Hkkj}kt ifr latho dqekj mez 40 lky fu-e-ua-02 lsBh
bDyso cynso uxj vackyk dh e`R;q dh tkap mfu fjadw tkVo }kjk dh xbZ ftlds }kjk exZ
tkap dk izfrosnu izLrqr fd;k x;kA exZ tkap izfrosnu ds vuqlkj e`frdk lksfu;k Hkkj}kt
dk lqlkbZM uksV ?kVuk LFky ls tCr fd;k x;k] ftlesa mYysf[kr rF;ksa ls izdV gksrk gS
fd og meax fla?kkj ls vHkh rd vk'kkfUor Fkh] D;ksfa d bl laca/k esa e`frdk lksfu;k
Hkkj}kt o meax fla?kkj ds ifjokjtuksa us fnlacj 2020 esa jksdk dh jLe FkhA meax
fla?kkj dk xqLlSy LoHkko dk gksuk rFkk e`frdk dks de le; nsus ls Hkh og nq[kh FkhA
blh dkj.k nq[kh gksdj mlus 'kknh u gksus ds dkj.k ,oa izrkfMr gksus ds dkj.k
vkRegR;k dh gSA e`frdk lksfu;k Hkkj}kt meax fla?kkj ds lkFk muds fuokl&ch&238
'kkgiqjk esa djhc 02 ekg ls fcuk fookg ds fyo&bo&fjys'ku esa jg jgh Fkh vkSj e`frdk us
meax fla?kkj ds fuokl ds 'k;ud{k esa vlkekU; ifjfLFkfr esa Qkalh yxkdj vkRegR;k dkfjr
dh gSA tkap esa e`frdk dh ih,e fjiksVZ Hkh izkIr dh xbZ rFkk lkf{k;ksa ds dFku fy;s
x;sA vr% lEiw.kZ exZ tkap esa meax fla?kkj ds }kjk e`frdk lksfu;k Hkkj}kt dks
vkRegR;k ds fy;s nqLisfjr djus laca/kh rF; izdV gksus ls meax fla?kkj ds fo:) /kkjk 306
Hkknfo ds varxZr vijk/k ?kfVr gksuk ik;k tkus ls izdj.k iathc) dj foospuk esa fy;k x;kA
udy exZ bVhaes'ku vuqlkj fuEukuqlkj gS&lwpd x.ks'k fla?kkj firk HkSjksflag fla?kkj
mez 28 lky fuoklh e-ua- ch 238 'kkgiqjk Hkksiky eks-ua-9630198555 us Fkkuk
mifLFkr vkdj lwpuk fn;k fd eS mijksDr fy[kk;s irs ij jgrk gWw vius ckl ds lkFk caxys ij
rFkk muds vkfQl esaVusal dk dke djrk gWwA eS ftl irs ij jgrk gWw og esjs ckl dk ?kj
gS] mlh ?kj 15 fnu ls mudh ifjfpr lksfu;k M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 Hkkj}kt Hkh jg jgh
FkhA tks ,d vyx dejs es jg jgh FkhA tks njokts can fd;s gq;s FkhA nksigj ds 01@00 cts
mlds dejs dk njoktk [kV[kVk;k rks ugha [kksyk rks eSus f[kMdh ls >kddj ns[kk rks
lksfu;k Hkkj}kt Qkalh ds Qans ij yVdh gqbZ FkhA ftlus nqiVVs dk Qank cukdj Qkalh
yxkbZ FkhA ftlls mldh e`R;q gks xbZ FkhA blds ckn eSus vius ckl dks ;s ckr crkbZA
blds ckn iqfyl ekSds ij vkbZA rks lwpuk nsrk gWw dk;Zokgh dh tk;sA lwpuk i<dj
ns[kh esjs cksys vuqlkj fy[kh xbZ gSA gLrk{kj djrk gWwA lwpuk exZ Ø-18@21 /kkjk
174 tkQkS dk iathc) dj tkap esa fy;k x;kA gLrk{kj lwpd x.ks'k ds fgUnh esa gLrk{kj
dk;ehdrkZ izvkj-459 dUgS;kyky vaxzsth esa fnukad 16@05@21"

It is to be seen as to whether in the suicide note, the ingredients to constitute an offence under
Section 306 of IPC against the petitioner were available or not, therefore, it would be apt to go
through Section 306 of the IPC which reads as under:-

"306. Abetment of suicide.-If any person commits suicide, whoever abets the
commission of such suicide, shall be punished with imprisonment of either

Umang Singhar vs The State Of Madhya Pradesh on 5 January, 2022

Indian Kanoon - http://indiankanoon.org/doc/83856782/ 5

72



description for a term which may extend to ten years, and shall also be liable to fine."

From perusal of Section 306 of the IPC, it is clear that abetment to commit suicide is a material
ingredient. The word abetment has been defined under Section 107 of the IPC which reads as
under:-

"107. Abetment of a thing.--A person abets the doing of a thing, who-

First.-- Instigates any person to do that thing; or Secondly.-- Engages with one or
more other person or persons in any conspiracy for the doing of that thing, if an act
or illegal omission takes place in pursuance of that conspiracy, and in order to the
doing of that thing; or Thirdly.-- Intentionally aids, by any act or illegal omission, the
doing of that thing.

Explanation 1.--A person who, by wilful misrepresentation, or by wilful concealment
of a material fact which he is bound to disclose, voluntarily causes or procures, or
attempts to cause or procure, a thing to be done, is said to instigate the doing of that
thing. Explanation 2.--Whoever, either prior to or at the time of the commission of an
act, does anything in order to facilitate the commission of that act, and thereby
facilitate the commission thereof, is said to aid the doing of that act."

From perusal of aforesaid provisions and the requirement of material ingredients about abetment, it
is clear that there must be an active role of an accused for instigating or aiding the M.Cr.C. No.25707
of 2021 things which abeted the deceased for committing suicide and then only offence under
Section 306 of the IPC is made out. Abetment involves a mental process of instigating a person or
intentionally aiding that process in doing of a thing. Without there being a positive act on the part of
the accused to instigate or aid things for committing suicide, conviction cannot be sustained. If a
particular act is done then there has to be a clear mens rea for committing the offence. From the
over all circumstances existing in the case, if it is revealed that the deceased had no option but to
commit suicide and it was the accused who intended to push her into the situation of committing
suicide, then only the ingredients of Section 306 of the IPC are fulfilled.

10. Here in the present case, the suicide note nowhere indicates that it was the petitioner who at any
point of time had committed such an act, which comes under the definition of abetment. Even the
deceased had not disclosed about any type of instigation done by the petitioner which compelled her
to commit suicide, on the contrary, the suicide note reflects that the deceased was keeping high
hopes from the petitioner and somehow as those hopes were not fulfilled, therefore, she got
depressed and committed suicide mentioning in her suicide note that nobody is to be blamed for her
suicide. The suicide note otherwise speaks about the nature and temperament of deceased showing
that she was a hyper-sensitive lady and under depression, committed suicide. Further, the nearest
relatives of the deceased i.e. her mother and son in their statements have neither said anything
against the petitioner nor said that the deceased in her lifetime had ever complained about any
ill-treatment, cruelty and harassment done by the petitioner, then it is unclear as to how the
prosecution reached the conclusion that the petitioner is an accused of offence under Section 306 of
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the IPC. Under such circumstances, M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 implicating the petitioner in the
matter by presuming things which were even not available on record nor the part of suicide note, is
not proper.

11. The Supreme Court in the case of Ramesh Kumar (supra) while considering the required
ingredients of offence under Section 306 of the IPC has observed as under:-

"20. Instigation is to goad, urge forward, provoke, incite or encourage to do "an act".
To satisfy the requirement of instigation though it is not necessary that actual words
must be used to that effect or what constitutes instigation must necessarily and
specifically be suggestive of the consequence. Yet a reasonable certainty to incite the
consequence must be capable of being spelt out. The present one is not a case where
the accused had by his acts or omission or by a continued course of conduct created
such circumstances that the deceased was left with no other option except to commit
suicide in which case an instigation may have been inferred. A word uttered in the fit
of anger or emotion without intending the consequences to actually follow cannot be
said to be instigation.

21. In State of W.B. v. Orilal Jaiswal [(1994) 1 SCC 73] this Court has cautioned that
the court should be extremely careful in assessing the facts and circumstances of each
case and the evidence adduced in the trial for the purpose of finding whether the
cruelty meted out to the victim had in fact induced her to end her life by committing
suicide. If it transpires to the court that a victim committing suicide was
hypersensitive to ordinary petulance, discord and differences in domestic life quite
common to the society to which the victim belonged and such petulance, discord and
differences were not expected to induce a similarly circumstanced individual in a
given society to commit suicide, the conscience of the court should not be satisfied for
basing a finding that the accused charged of abetting the offence of suicide should be
found guilty."

Further, the Supreme Court in the case of Randhir Singh (supra) while dealing with a case of Section
306 of the IPC has observed as under:-

"12. Abetment involves a mental process of instigating a person or intentionally
aiding that person in doing of a thing. In cases of conspiracy also it would involve
that mental process of entering into conspiracy for the doing of that thing. More
active role which can be described as instigating or aiding the doing of a thing is
required before a person can be said to be abetting the commission of offence under
Section 306 IPC."

M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 Moreso, in the case of Madan Mohan Singh (supra), the
Supreme Court after considering the required of ingredients of Section 306 of the IPC
has observed as under:-
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"13. It is absurd to even think that a superior officer like the appellant would intend
to bring about suicide of his driver and, therefore, abet the offence. In fact, there is no
nexus between the so-called suicide (if at all it is one for which also there is no
material on record) and any of the alleged acts on the part of the appellant. There is
no proximity either. In the prosecution under Section 306 IPC, much more material
is required. The courts have to be extremely careful as the main person is not
available for cross-examination by the appellant- accused. Unless, therefore, there is
specific allegation and material of definite nature (not imaginary or inferential one),
it would be hazardous to ask the appellant-accused to face the trial. A criminal trial is
not exactly a pleasant experience. The person like the appellant in the present case
who is serving in a responsible post would certainly suffer great prejudice, were he to
face prosecution on absurd allegations of irrelevant nature. In the similar
circumstances, as reported in Netai Dutta v. State of W.B. [(2005) 2 SCC 659], this
Court had quashed the proceedings initiated against the accused.

14. As regards the suicide note, which is a document of about 15 pages, all that we can
say is that it is an anguish expressed by the driver who felt that his boss (the accused)
had wronged him. The suicide note and the FIR do not impress us at all. They cannot
be depicted as expressing anything intentional on the part of the accused that the
deceased might commit suicide. If the prosecutions are allowed to continue on such
basis, it will be difficult for every superior officer even to work.

15. It was tried to be contended by the learned counsel appearing on behalf of the
complainant that at this stage, we should not go into the merits of the FIR or the said
suicide note. It is trite law now that where there is some material alleged in the FIR,
then such FIR and the ensuing proceedings should not be quashed under Section 482
CrPC. It is for this reason that we very closely examined the FIR to see whether it
amounts to a proper complaint for the offence under Sections 306 and 294(b) IPC.

16. Insofar as Section 294(b) IPC is concerned, we could not find a single word in the
FIR or even in the so-called suicide note. Insofar as Section 306 IPC is concerned,
even at the cost of repetition, we may say that merely because a person had a grudge
against his superior officer and committed suicide on account of that grudge, even
honestly feeling that he was wronged, it would still not be a proper allegation for
basing the charge under Section 306 IPC. It will still fall short of a M.Cr.C. No.25707
of 2021 proper allegation. It would have to be objectively seen whether the allegations
made could reasonably be viewed as proper allegations against the appellant-accused
to the effect that he had intended or engineered the suicide of the person concerned
by his acts, words, etc. When we put the present FIR on this test, it falls short.

17. We have already explained that the baseless and irrelevant allegations could not
be used as a basis for prosecution for a serious offence under Section 306 IPC.
Similarly, we have already considered Section 294(b) IPC also. We have not been able
to find anything. Under such circumstances, where the FIR itself does not have any
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material or is not capable of being viewed as having material for offences under
Sections 306 and 294(b) IPC, as per the law laid down by this Court in State of
Haryana v. Bhajan Lal [1992 Supp (1) SCC 335], it would be only proper to quash the
FIR and the further proceedings."

The Supreme Court in the case of S.S. Chheena (supra) while dealing with the case of
Section 306 of the IPC has observed as under:-

"25. Abetment involves a mental process of instigating a person or intentionally
aiding a person in doing of a thing. Without a positive act on the part of the accused
to instigate or aid in committing suicide, conviction cannot be sustained. The
intention of the legislature and the ratio of the cases decided by this Court is clear
that in order to convict a person under Section 306 IPC there has to be a clear mens
rea to commit the offence. It also requires an active act or direct act which led the
deceased to commit suicide seeing no option and that act must have been intended to
push the deceased into such a position that he committed suicide.

26. In the instant case, the deceased was undoubtedly hypersensitive to ordinary
petulance, discord and differences which happen in our day-to-day life. Human
sensitivity of each individual differs from the other. Different people behave
differently in the same situation.

27. When we carefully scrutinise and critically examine the facts of this case in the
light of the settled legal position the conclusion becomes obvious that no conviction
can be legally sustained without any credible evidence or material on record against
the appellant. The order of framing a charge under Section 306 IPC against the
appellant is palpably erroneous and unsustainable. It would be travesty of justice to
compel the appellant to face a criminal trial without any credible material
whatsoever. Consequently, the order of framing charge under Section 306 IPC
against the appellant is quashed and all proceedings pending against him are also set
aside."

M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 In the case of M. Mohan (supra), the Supreme Court not
only dealt with the material ingredients for constituting the offence of Section 306 of
the IPC, but also considered as to when the power of Section 482 of the CrPC can be
exercised for quashing the proceeding initiated against the accused under Section
306 of the IPC. The Supreme Court in the said case has observed as under:-

"44. Abetment involves a mental process of instigating a person or intentionally
aiding a person in doing of a thing. Without a positive act on the part of the accused
to instigate or aid in committing suicide, conviction cannot be sustained.

* * *
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50. The next question which arises in this case is that in view of the settled legal
position whether the High Court ought to have quashed the proceedings under its
inherent power under Section 482 of the Criminal Procedure Code in the facts and
circumstances of this case?

51. This Court had an occasion to examine the legal position in a large number of
cases. In R.P. Kapur v. State of Punjab [AIR 1960 SC 866] this Court summarised
some categories of cases where the High Court in its inherent power can and should
exercise, to quash the proceedings:

(i) where it manifestly appears that there is a legal bar against the institution or
continuance of the proceedings;

(ii) where the allegations in the first information report or complaint taken at their
face value and accepted in their entirety do not constitute the offence alleged;

(iii) where the allegations constitute an offence, but there is no legal evidence
adduced or the evidence adduced clearly or manifestly fails to prove the charge.

* * *

53. This Court in State of Karnataka v. L. Muniswamy [(1977) 2 SCC 699] observed
that the wholesome power under Section 482 CrPC entitles the High Court to quash a
proceeding when it comes to the conclusion that allowing the proceedings to continue
would be an abuse of the process of the court or that the ends of justice require that
the proceedings ought to be quashed. The High Courts have been invested with
inherent powers, both in civil and criminal matters, to achieve a salutary public
purpose. A court proceeding ought not to be permitted to degenerate into a weapon
of harassment or persecution. In this case, the Court observed that ends of justice are
higher than the ends of mere law though justice must be administered according to
laws made by the legislature. This case has been M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 followed
in a large number of subsequent cases of this Court and other courts."

The Supreme Court in the case of Gurcharan Singh (supra) after considering the
material ingredients for constituting the offence of Section 306 of the IPC has
observed as under:-

"26. Though for the purposes of the case in hand, the first limb of the explanation is
otherwise germane, proof of the wilful conduct actuating the woman to commit
suicide or to cause grave injury or danger to life, limb or health, whether mental or
physical, is the sine qua non for entering a finding of cruelty against the person
charged.
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27. The pith and purport of Section 306 IPC has since been enunciated by this Court
in Randhir Singh v. State of Punjab [(2004) 13 SCC 129], and the relevant excerpts
therefrom are set out hereunder: (SCC p. 134, paras 12-13) "12. Abetment involves a
mental process of instigating a person or intentionally aiding that person in doing of
a thing. In cases of conspiracy also it would involve that mental process of entering
into conspiracy for the doing of that thing. More active role which can be described as
instigating or aiding the doing of a thing is required before a person can be said to be
abetting the commission of offence under Section 306 IPC.

13. In State of W.B. v. Orilal Jaiswal [(1994) 1 SCC 73], this Court has observed that
the courts should be extremely careful in assessing the facts and circumstances of
each case and the evidence adduced in the trial for the purpose of finding whether the
cruelty meted out to the victim had in fact induced her to end the life by committing
suicide. If it transpires to the court that a victim committing suicide was
hypersensitive to ordinary petulance, discord and differences in domestic life quite
common to the society to which the victim belonged and such petulance, discord and
differences were not expected to induce a similarly circumstanced individual in a
given society to commit suicide, the conscience of the court should not be satisfied for
basing a finding that the accused charged of abetting the offence of suicide should be
found guilty."

(emphasis supplied)

28. Significantly, this Court underlined by referring to its earlier pronouncement in
State of W.B. v. Orilal Jaiswal [(1994) 1 SCC 73] that courts have to be extremely
careful in assessing the facts and circumstances of each case to ascertain as to
whether cruelty had been meted out to the victim and that the same had induced the
person to end his/her life by M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 committing suicide, with the
caveat that if the victim committing suicide appears to be hypersensitive to ordinary
petulance, discord and differences in domestic life, quite common to the society to
which he or she belonged and such factors were not expected to induce a similarly
circumstanced individual to resort to such step, the accused charged with abetment
could not be held guilty. The above view was reiterated in Amalendu Pal v. State of
W.B. [(2010) 1 SCC 707].

29. That the intention of the legislature is that in order to convict a person under
Section 306 IPC, there has to be a clear mens rea to commit an offence and that there
ought to be an active or direct act leading the deceased to commit suicide, being left
with no option, had been propounded by this Court in S.S. Chheena v. Vijay Kumar
Mahajan [(2010) 12 SCC 190].

* * *
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32. In the wake of the above determination, we are, thus, of the unhesitant opinion
that the ingredients of the offence of Section 306 IPC have remained unproved and
thus the appellant deserves to be acquitted. The findings to the contrary recorded by
the courts below cannot be sustained on the touchstone of the law adumbrated by
this Court as well as the facts involved. The appeal is thus allowed. The appellant
would be set at liberty from custody, if his detention is not required in connection
with any other case."

12. In the case of Neeharika Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.

(supra) on which learned Deputy Advocate General has placed reliance, the Supreme Court in
paragraph-80 of its order has observed as under:-

"80. In view of the above and for the reasons stated above, our final conclusions on
the principal/core issue, whether the High Court would be justified in passing an
interim order of stay of investigation and/or "no coercive steps to be adopted", during
the pendency of the quashing petition under Section 482 Cr.P.C and/or under Article
226 of the Constitution of India and in what circumstances and whether the High
Court would be justified in passing the order of not to arrest the accused or "no
coercive  steps  to  be  adopted"  during the invest igat ion or  t i l l  the  f inal
report/chargesheet is filed under Section 173 Cr.P.C., while dismissing/disposing
of/not entertaining/not quashing the criminal proceedings/complaint/FIR in
exercise of powers under Section 482 Cr.P.C. and/or under Article 226 of the
Constitution of India, our final conclusions are as under:

i) Police has the statutory right and duty under the relevant provisions of the Code of
Criminal Procedure contained in Chapter XIV of the Code to investigate into a
cognizable offence;

M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021

ii) Courts would not thwart any investigation into the cognizable offences;

iii) It is only in cases where no cognizable offence or offence of any kind is disclosed in the first
information report that the Court will not permit an investigation to go on;

iv) The power of quashing should be exercised sparingly with circumspection, as it has been
observed, in the 'rarest of rare cases (not to be confused with the formation in the context of death
penalty).

v) While examining an FIR/complaint, quashing of which is sought, the court cannot embark upon
an enquiry as to the reliability or genuineness or otherwise of the allegations made in the
FIR/complaint;

Umang Singhar vs The State Of Madhya Pradesh on 5 January, 2022

Indian Kanoon - http://indiankanoon.org/doc/83856782/ 12

79



vi) Criminal proceedings ought not to be scuttled at the initial stage;

vii) Quashing of a complaint/FIR should be an exception rather than an ordinary rule;

viii) Ordinarily, the courts are barred from usurping the jurisdiction of the police, since the two
organs of the State operate in two specific spheres of activities and one ought not to tread over the
other sphere;

ix) The functions of the judiciary and the police are complementary, not overlapping;

x) Save in exceptional cases where non-interference would result in miscarriage of justice, the Court
and the judicial process should not interfere at the stage of investigation of offences;

xi) Extraordinary and inherent powers of the Court do not confer an arbitrary jurisdiction on the
Court to act according to its whims or caprice;

xii) The first information report is not an encyclopaedia which must disclose all facts and details
relating to the offence reported. Therefore, when the investigation by the police is in progress, the
court should not go into the merits of the allegations in the FIR. Police must be permitted to
complete the investigation. It would be premature to pronounce the conclusion based on hazy facts
that the complaint/FIR does not deserve to be investigated or that it amounts to abuse of process of
law. After investigation, if the investigating officer finds that there is no substance in the application
made by the complainant, the investigating officer may file an appropriate report/summary before
the learned Magistrate which may be considered by the learned Magistrate in accordance with the
known procedure;

xiii) The power under Section 482 Cr.P.C. is very wide, but conferment of wide power requires the
court to be more cautious. It casts an onerous M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 and more diligent duty on
the court;

xiv) However, at the same time, the court, if it thinks fit, regard being had to the parameters of
quashing and the self-restraint imposed by law, more particularly the parameters laid down by this
Court in the cases of R.P. Kapur (supra) and Bhajan Lal (supra), has the jurisdiction to quash the
FIR/complaint;

xv) When a prayer for quashing the FIR is made by the alleged accused and the court when it
exercises the power under Section 482 Cr.P.C., only has to consider whether the allegations in the
FIR disclose commission of a cognizable offence or not. The court is not required to consider on
merits whether or not the merits of the allegations make out a cognizable offence and the court has
to permit the investigating agency/police to investigate the allegations in the FIR;

xvi) The aforesaid parameters would be applicable and/or the aforesaid aspects are required to be
considered by the High Court while passing an interim order in a quashing petition in exercise of
powers under Section 482 Cr.P.C. and/or under Article 226 of the Constitution of India. However,
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an interim order of stay of investigation during the pendency of the quashing petition can be passed
with circumspection. Such an interim order should not require to be passed routinely, casually
and/or mechanically. Normally, when the investigation is in progress and the facts are hazy and the
entire evidence/material is not before the High Court, the High Court should restrain itself from
passing the interim order of not to arrest or "no coercive steps to be adopted" and the accused
should be relegated to apply for anticipatory bail under Section 438 Cr.P.C. before the competent
court. The High Court shall not and as such is not justified in passing the order of not to arrest
and/or "no coercive steps" either during the investigation or till the investigation is completed
and/or  t i l l  the  f ina l  report/chargesheet  i s  f i l ed  under  Sect ion  173  Cr .P .C . ,  whi le
dismissing/disposing of the quashing petition under Section 482 Cr.P.C. and/or under Article 226
of the Constitution of India.

xvii) Even in a case where the High Court is prima facie of the opinion that an exceptional case is
made out for grant of interim stay of further investigation, after considering the broad parameters
while exercising the powers under Section 482 Cr.P.C. and/or under Article 226 of the Constitution
of India referred to M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 hereinabove, the High Court has to give brief reasons
why such an interim order is warranted and/or is required to be passed so that it can demonstrate
the application of mind by the Court and the higher forum can consider what was weighed with the
High Court while passing such an interim order.

xviii) Whenever an interim order is passed by the High Court of "no coercive steps to be adopted"
within the aforesaid parameters, the High Court must clarify what does it mean by "no coercive
steps to be adopted" as the term "no coercive steps to be adopted" can be said to be too vague and/or
broad which can be misunderstood and/or misapplied."

However, I am not convinced with the submissions as have been made by learned Deputy Advocate
General for the reason that the circumstances in the present case are altogether different. In my
opinion, the contents of suicide note do not constitute any offence of Section 306 against the
petitioner and even otherwise, the statements of mother and son of the deceased clearly indicate
that they do not want to lodge any prosecution against the petitioner because according to them the
petitioner was not at fault nor the deceased has committed suicide because of the attitude of the
petitioner. Even otherwise, respondent No.2/mother of the deceased has also supported the
averments made in the petition and in her reply, she has also stated that the petitioner has been
falsely implicated in the matter whereas he never harassed the deceased nor committed any act of
cruelty towards her. Respondent No.2 in her reply has also stated that the deceased was suffering
from BPAD and as she was unhappy and under depression, therefore, committed suicide. In the case
of Neeharika Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. (supra) on which learned Deputy Advocate General has placed
reliance the Supreme Court in paragraph 57(iii) has dealt with the circumstances as to when power
under Section 482 can be exercised. Paragraph 57 (iii) reads thus:-

M.Cr.C. No.25707 of 2021 "57...........

i).......
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ii)......

iii) However, in cases where no cognizable offence or offence of any kind is disclosed
in the first information report the Court will not permit an investigation to go on;"

13. In view of the aforesaid, it is clear that if the contents of FIR do not disclose any
type of offence against a person then the investigation cannot be permitted to go on.
In the present case considering the over all circumstances of the case as also the FIR
which has been lodged by presuming things which are not available in the suicide
note, I do not find that any offence is made out against the petitioner. Moreover, the
nearest relatives of the deceased i.e. mother and son in their statements have
categorically said that they do not have any grievance with the petitioner nor they
want to initiate any prosecution against him. However, if the contents of FIR on their
face value are considered to be correct even then no cognizable offence is made out
against the petitioner. In such circumstances, this Court finds that registration of FIR
against the petitioner by presuming things which are not available in the suicide note,
is nothing but an abuse of process of law and if the power provided under Section
482 of the CrPC is exercised for quashing the said FIR, then there would no illegality
on the part of this Court.

14. Thus, in view of the discussions made hereinabove, I am inclined to allow this
petition and as such, it is allowed. Consequently, FIR dated 17.05.2021 registered
against the petitioner vide Crime No.375/2021 at Police Station Shahpura, District
Bhopal for the offence punishable under Section 306 of the IPC is hereby quashed.

(SANJAY DWIVEDI) JUDGE Devashish DEVASHISH MISHRA 2022.01.06 10:19:50 +05'30'
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To, 
The Police Station In charge 
Police Station District Dhar 
Naugaon Dhar 

19 

Subject: Regarding complaint against my wife for blackmailing me, causing mental harassment, uttering caste specific words and causing physical harassment. 
Applicant- Umang Singhar S/o Sh. Dayaram Singh 

Sir, 

It is respectfully submitted that; my marriage was 
solemnized with Pratima on 16.04.22 and since after the 

marriage itself Pratima is blackmailing me and saying that 
I have married you only for money. Either you pay me 

Rs.10 Crores or else I will ruin your career and will lodge 
an FIR against you on the basis of frivolous allegations. 
Pratima intends to fabricate me in a false case. Pratima 
has insulted me and I am mentally upset. Many time I tried 
to counsel Pratima. Pratima utters obscene abuses to me. 
I have become mentally upset as a result of blackmailing 

and harassment caused by Pratima. Now I amn left with no 

courage. 

Therefore, it is humbly prayed for registering an FIR under 
Atrocities Act against Pratima for the charges of extortion, 
physical and mental harassment. 

Sd/- illegible 
02.11.2022 

Complainant 
Umang Singhar 

9826040402 
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CIS No. CRM-8695 of 2023
CNR No. HRGR-03-196114-2023

Pratima Mudgal v. Umang Singhar

Present: Applicant in person assisted by Sh. Vaibhav Vats, Advocate.

Order dated 21.12.2024

Main file not received. Arguments not advanced. Adjournment sought.

Heard. List on 14.02.2025 for remaining arguments (if any) and for consideration

on the matter.

Gaurang Sharma
UID No. HR0445

    Civil Judge (JD), Gurugram
21.12.2024
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To, 
Sri Madhur D Singh, 
Joint Director, 
Bhopal Zonal Office, 
Ground Floor, BSNL Bhavan, 
Arera Hills, Hosangabad Road, 
Bhopal (M.P.)- 462027 
0755-2990315 Jdbhzo-ed@gov.in 

04.10.2023 

Subject: Complaint against Mr. Umang Singhar S/o Late 
Daya Ram Singhar, Rio Dhar, Behind PWD Office, Vidhayak Niwas, 
Dhar, M.P. has acquired unfettered money and property in various place 
of Madhya Pradesh and in another person (Benami Transaction) like 
Gaytri and Ganesh. 

Sir/ Madam, 

I, Pratima Mudgal W/o Sri Umang Singhar, D/o Shri U.K. Mudgal, 

aged about 37 Years, Rio Ward No. 15, Opposite NH-30, Barela, 

Jabalpur, M.P. (Third Wife) bring to your kind notice that my husband 

Mr. Umang Singhar has acquired unfettered money and property in 

various place of Madhya Pradesh and Benami Transaction in the name 

of Gaytri and Ganesh. 

Mr. Umang Singhar has supressed information regarding his 

assets and income from government. He earned huge amount through 

various unknown sources and have not disclosed the same in his 

Income Tax Return. All these can be revealed from the details of the 

property which is in my knowledge and rest is for your investigation. 

My jewellery is also with him. When he is hiding from Police, he is 

also involved in Money laundering, foreign exchange violations, 

Smuggling Black money, Tax evasion, Corruption, Fraud and 
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Intellectual property theft. Copy of Aadhar Card is enclosed herewith 

& marked as Annexure P-1 

1. That Mr. Umnag Singhar has filed an affidavit while he is 

contesting election ofMLA in 2018 for your reference. On affidavit the 

detail of the property furnished in are herein-below: -

• Detail of movable Property: 
a. Self: Rs. 29,68,271/-
b. Husband & wife: Rs.ll,05,545/-
c. Dependent no. 1: Rs. 5,000/-
d. Dependent no.2: Rs. 5,000/-

• Detail of Fixed Assets: 
a. Self: Rs. 2,30,96,400/-
b. Husband & wife: Rs. 0/-
c. Dependent no. 1: Rs. 0/-
d. Dependent no.2: Rs. 0/-Copy of affidavit is enclosed herewith 

and marked as Annexure P-2 

2. That Mr. Umang Singhar is involved in serious fraud offences 

against the general public at large because he was declared as 

Defaulter for embezzlement of Rupees two crores thirty-nine 

lakhs forty-one thousand two hundred ninety-one of PNB. The 

bank has initiated action/proceeding against my husband under 

SARFESI. While he became minister, he acquired huge money 

and sort out all SARFESI and financial issues with bank. 

3. That he purchased so many benami properties in the name of 

Ganesh (property value approx. 50 crore) who is staff of my 

family. Copy of J amabandi is enclosed is marked as Annexure 

P-3 
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4. He purchased property in Dhar Mandu (Hill station value approx. 

10 crore) in the name of my made namely Gayatri (Mobile No. 

62681-32033) Wlo Ganesh (Mobile No. 96301-98555 I 89594-

84507 I 91310-09600). 

5. He purchased property in Bhopal House CI, farm near Kaliyasot 

Dam, National Law Institute University in the name of his friend 

so called Tittu Saxena, Ujjain (Mobile No. 87696-27944 I 62624-

931 07) (Value approx. 10 crore) 

6. Property of Dhar House, Near PWD office, Dhar, M.P. belongs 
his name but later on transfer this property in his mother's name. 

7. He is having two office and two flats in Indore in the name ofhis 
Second wife Vinita. (He is in process of transfer I dispossessed 
of this property) 

8. Pithampur factory, Jiaan biotech Pvt. Ltd. Pithampur M.P. 
purchased in his naine and his mother. 

9. Purchased Defender Car price ranges between~ 1.16 Crore to~ 
2.41 Crore in his name. 

10. Purchased property in the name of Shubham Ajmera and his 

wife. Shubham Ajmera and his wife dealing black money of 

Umang Singhar. (Mobile No. 89305-11111 I 99939-70070 I 

83054-18008 I 99938-86779) 

11. Purchased property in the name of Ashok Chouhan and his wife. 

Ashok Chouhan and his wife invest his black money and He is 

dealing entire huge cash amount from one place to another place. 

Mobile No. 98939-32000) 

8 
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C.C. No. 

FIR No.  

P.S.  

IN THE COURT OF  C-HIEF InEikorOLLTA-Al infiaisTRATE, PATTAA HoviE c6vieT1 

JURISDICTION OF 20 
Suit / Appeal No. 

In re:-
MS. PRATIM A 111U3GAL 

VERSUS 

Plaintiff(s) Petitione -----
Appellant(s) Complainan 

a NKr- Urn 1•4 IN G>HAR. O .  Defendant(s) I Respondent(s) iAccuseci 

KNOW ALL to whom these Present shall Come that I! We  P RPairr) A m LIDGA L 

The above named  Co rn LA TNANT  do hereby appoint 

C_HAiJDIKA PRASAD 1117_2Hkr 1 PRASHAin Sir•JGH wAveEtv KUMAR, TEJEMDRA ZN6 

( OR ANKIT PANDEY ADVOCATES F THE Cam!' utLNANT) 
Acid _ A - 81, FIR3T FlboR SOUTH ExTEkisioN , NEW — 1.100+9 

Ph:- 38,3,9 5.3 z4- , 3 4-03-8+326g 

Email c-p, cictrnaLL cam, s h asti bi  heigcraa . (an-) 

(herein after called the advocate/s) to be my / our Advocate in the above - noted case authorize him:-
To act, appear and plead in the above-noted case In this court or In any othii.r court in which the same may be tried 

or heard and also In the appellate court including High Court sukect to payment offtr:IS separately for ei  
To sign file, verify and present pleadings, sppeais cross-objections Of 0:stations for 

executions review, revision, withdrawal, compromise or other petitions or affidavits or other 

documents as may be deemed necessary or proper for the prosecution of the said case in all its 
stages subjects to payment of fees for each stage. 

To file and take beck documents, to admit and/or deny the documents ,t,1 opposite party. 

To withdrew or compromise the said case or submit to arbitration any differences or - AN 
disputes that may arise touching or In any manner relating to the saki case. 

To take execution proceedings on paying raparate fee. 
To deposit, draw cod receive money, cheques, cash and grant receipts hereof and to  

do all other acts and things which may be necessary to be done for the progress and in the 

course of the prosecution on the said case. 
To appoint and instruct any other Legal Practitioner authorising him to exercise the power 

conferred upon the Advocate whenever he may think fit to do so and to sign the power of attorney on our behalf. 

And I/VVe the undersigned do hereby agree to ratify and confirm all acts done by the Advocate or 
his substitute in the matter as my/our own acts, as if done by me/us to all intents and purpose. 

And I/We undertake that I/VVe or my/our duly authorised agent would appear in court on all hearings 
and will inform the Advocate for appaarance when the case Is called. 

And I/VVe undersigned do hereby agree not to hold the advocate or his substitute responsible for the result of 
the said case. The adjournment costs whenever ordered by the court shall be of the Advocate which he shall receive 
and retain for himself. 

And I/We undersigned do hereby agree that 'n the event of the whole or part of the fee agreed by me/us to be 
paid to the advocate remaining unpaid he shall be entitled to withdraw from the prosecution of the said case until the 
same is paid up. The fee settle is only for the above case and above Court. I , ',Nee hereby agree that once the fee Is 
paid, I / We will not be entitled for the refund of the same in any case whatLosver and if the case prolongs for 
more than 3 years the original fee shall be paid again by me/ us. 

IN WITNESS WHERE OF I We do hereunto set mour hand to these presents the contents of which have 
been understood by me / us on this  day f 1A/1:1472025 Accepted subject to the terms of the fees. 

Client Client Client 

I iderrtify The Signature/ Thumb Impression Of Below Merrtidried Person, 

Who Him Niers Signed In My Pret4nce. The Client 
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